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Retail Outlets BAEEE, e

An Extensive Network

Capturing Growing Opportunities in China

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongqging, Tianjin,
Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to efficiently respond to customer needs
and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,925 retail outlets, comprising 1,705 concessionary counters and 220 retail
shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Has been deeply aware of the importance of
upholding high-quality standards and hence
continued to devote resources to the design,
research and development of new products, so as
to launch products with outstanding quality for
various markets to meet varying consumer needs
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The Multi-Brand

Strategy

and optimisation of Embry’s nationwide sales
network, that have been implemented for
several years, brought positive impact to the
Group’s operations and enhanced its
operating efficiency

To All Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry
Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2017 on behalf of
the Board of Directors.

In 2017, the global economy maintained positive momentum while
investor confidence in the financial and capital markets strengthened.
Several financial institutions raised their forecasts for China's economic
growth. China’s consumption sentiment gradually improved as the
continued increase in per capita income boosted consumer confidence
in the country. As for the total retail sales of social consumer goods in
2017, the value of clothing sector increased by 7.8% year-on-year and
the growth rate accelerated by 0.8 percentage point, reflecting the
continued expansion in the clothing retailing market.

Despite the improvement in the overall economic and consumer
sentiment, the competition in the retail industry increasingly
intensified. Coupled with a higher intention of the consumers to
purchase discounted products, promotional pressure prolonged in the
overall underwear retailing industry. However, disposable income of
residents in China sustained a relatively high growth rate and grew
faster than the country’s gross domestic product. The consumption
upgrade driven by the rise in purchasing power will propel the
development of the overall underwear retailing market in the long term.
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In face of the constantly changing underwear market in China, Embry
continued to closely monitor the market changes and adhered to the
policy of flexible planning and prudent implementation in operation.
The multi-brand strategy and optimisation of the Group’s nationwide
sales network, that have been implemented for several years, brought
positive impact to the Group’s operations and enhanced its operating
efficiency.

Leveraging on the Group's business scale and its longstanding history
in China, along with its nationwide sales network and the multi-brand
strategy, the Group could effectively allocate its resources to cater to
the changing market environment. It continued its efforts in developing
its new brands while continuously optimising its sales network.

In 2017, rural households’ consumption expenditures on clothing in
China increased by 6.3% year-on-year, exceeding the 1.1% increase
reported by its urban counterparts. The overall consumption upgrade
in China coupled with the accelerated urbanisation, resulted in the
expansion of customer base and market segmentation. To address the
diversified needs of consumers, the Group devoted to enriching its
brand mix and strengthening its overall brand penetration rate by
expanding customer base. Under its multi-brand strategy, the Group
currently operates seven brands — EMBRY FORM, FANDECIE, IVU,
COMFIT, IADORE, LIZA CHENG, and E-BRA. For the middle-to-high-
end consumption market, the Group focuses on EMBRY FORM,
COMFIT, and FANDECIE to consolidate its market position and to
increase its market share. For the extensive middle-to-low-end

Chairman of the Group
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consumption market, the Group has been actively adjusted its market
strategy to reach an omni-channel coverage, such as positioning E-BRA
as an e-commerce brand and IJADORE as an offline wholesale brand.

Due to the change in consumption pattern of Chinese citizens, online
shopping and mobile shopping have become more prevalent.
According to the 2017 Total Retail survey by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the frequency of Chinese consumers shopping on mobile was higher
than in retail stores. The ratio of Chinese consumers shopping
frequently on mobile was higher than that of their global counterparts
by 38 percentage points. However, according to the same survey, only
3% of the Chinese interviewees stopped shopping in physical stores.
This ratio is lower than the world’s average. The data showed that while
e-commerce has become more popular, physical stores are still valued
by consumers. To cater for this consumption pattern, the Group has
continued to optimise its retail network so as to improve the sales
efficiency and expense ratio. During the year under review, the number
of the Group's retail outlets net decreased by 142 to 1,925 retail outlets
by the end of December 2017. The Group's retail network covers more
than 300 cities across China, and even reached third- and fourth-tier
cities. Optimisation of the sales network achieved initial success.
Meanwhile, the Group has also focused on strengthening the image
and penetration of its brands on the Internet.

In the year under review, revenue of the Group amounted to
HK$2,339,524,000, an increase of 5.57% from the previous year. The
improvement in the overall retail sentiment in China drove the sales
during the year. Benefitting from the optimisation of the sales network,
gross profit was approximately HK$1,825,492,000, representing an
increase of 4.64% from the previous year. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$495,299,000, net profit margin was
21.17%.

To thank our shareholders for their long-term support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per share.

Looking ahead to 2018, China's economy is likely to stay on a steady
upward trend. Positive drivers including the rise in household income
will continue to benefit the traditional retail industry. However, in view
of the rapid change in the consumption pattern, the retail industry
should stay focused on the market dynamics and react prudently. The
Group will be persistent in implementing the policy of flexible planning
and prudent execution while giving top priority to the Group’s long-
term interest and sustainable development. The Group's development
direction will not be altered easily by the temporary change in market
sentiment. The Group believes the continuous upgrade in
consumption structure and acceleration of urbanisation in China will
largely expand the retail market in the long term and help sustain the
growth of the industry.

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED Z#5ZR AR A 5 / ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3

BRDEERRTHERE  HEI2RENE
EEFEMRABEEAEY B LBYALE
HENEBLEE - RIEEFKE2017FE2TE

HE - FREEEREEYNARLGTEE
ERBYNLER  MPBEBEEBEFERE
HEBVOLERFEREZRFES L 38EET
DB R B—FAEZF 0 RA3BNTREY
BERNCTEREREEY LRE2KHEE
%mmw FERMEETEEOBE RANE
CBRENEEEE - ARSI HEBERN
Elﬁ“ﬁtzﬁ%ﬂﬁmiﬁ% LA DN o& 38 & 2 K
MMEBEAE - G AEEBNZTEHHEF
B EE—ZT— t¢+—HEMW3ﬂ

REE L HEEE K2 B8 300 @k -
HEREPEH= - ﬁﬁmoﬁ%%k#ma
IR - S—FHHE - EEITENREEET
EEREERE LEOFERRBBE -

REEFE - £E8E 2552339524000 7T °
8B FEE FF557% AR l%%ﬁé%/ﬁ%ﬁ

ANE ARFHE2FHE SN HEHSN
IBBILERRR - EF491,825492,0008 7T © & E
F[E EF4464% AR A EEAR AR EF 4
495,299,000 87T + A FIZE A 21.17% °

BEHHBEREHN I
% B &A% 8.0 -

ExeraRERD

RE-_ZT—)\F FEBBLCEERRYT E
Euﬁkkﬂvl%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁm@@r?ﬁg%
¥R EHEEANSREET -
ENERYBEMSHEWEERY - E.ﬂ—r
SEEBENE  EEHITHERL J/XE.%z
BHRERFDR &Tﬁ %X)EJ%E;(ETT &
A—EHm5
) o %*H@ ‘:F'./ﬁ E%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%&l«/ﬁ&i}ﬁ
TENR  REBRKBEATEMS  BITE
IR EIERNB) T -



In 2018, apart from the consistent implementation of multi-brand
strategy to increase its market penetration rate, the Group will also
closely monitor the overall market development in order to gauge the
right time to launch new products of its brands. Moreover, the Group
will continue to increase the penetration of IVU and LIZA CHENG in
key and well-established department stores, and open points of sale in
shopping centres. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to optimise its
sales network and close stores with low efficiency to improve the
overall effectiveness.

The trial run of the Group’s automated supply chain logistics facility
which comprises an intelligent warehouse at the production base in
Jinan, Shandong province progressed smoothly over the previous year.
Second phrase of the intelligent warehouse has entered into the
construction stage with a view of further enhancing the logistics
efficiency. In terms of production planning, the Group has appointed
contractor for the construction of phase two of the Group’s factory
premises and ancillary facilities at production base in Changzhou,
Jiangsu province, to meet the expansion needs in the future. With
enhancing the current efficiency as the key principle of the Group's
production planning, the Group will prudently carry out the
adjustment plan for production capacity, in order to maximise the
existing efficiency in production, logistics, and sales systems. In terms
of research and development, the Group will take into account the
consumer needs in the segmented underwear market when
developing products that meet diversified needs of consumers so as to
strengthen the Group's competitiveness of its various brands.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our employees for
their efforts and contributions to overcome the challenging 2017. |
would also like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders for
their long-term support, and appreciation of the Group's aspirations
and development strategy. To thank our shareholders for their trust, we
will make our best efforts to create a long-term and sustainable future
with our shareholders, business partners and customers.

NGOK Ming Chu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018

RZE-—NF SERTEHEEERZRER
B MATMBEER  TEERERMIGNE
BIFR  HAHAHELSRETERNS BERH -
BN EB S EEH SN IVU - LIZA CHENG T [E
EHKAETHEERR TEREDHLHEE
o A SENNSEEELIHENE - B
KK EEPYE - FRFARES o

AEBURIUREBREMEEEMHE LR
REAPLCHERY ARG EBE—FHA
BITIER - R E — BT E AR R
HERE-FREAMREE - EEREE
SEERETEIHEBMNIEESM  RE
EEEERE_MMEMENMBRE - AR
BARARBERAFTE - EEDNANRARBERER
RRA - BEETERAENRE - FFREA
HE MR HERGHNRAERAL - HES
e RERERASEAXRTENHEEER
Ko REmEREESHREFEROER  1Em
ek EAE R EmEAEF ] -

EEKE  AARLDBHASULEINNENE
Bl BEEAREIRTMBN —F 0 B
MEUBRRERNEENRBASE  UARHAE
EARKRERMNBLEMNEBORRE - REHBKRE
HEMOEE RATEELCATLEER N
DA - BRR - XBEHREFBTFAE - X
R AE REIL A FHEERAARK -

&R
FE

&5 - N\F=A=-+=H

11



:?| £
The Group will be persistent in implementing the  © 7
policy of flexible planning and prudent execution

while giving top priority to the Group'’s .,,._{7
long-term

interest & C S
sustainable £

development

AEERHFEEBELAE &
EMmTHRA - ASE R

R ta S
GRS ki

SEERRRE




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business and Operations Review

Looking back on 2017, the global economy continued to recover while
the U.S,, China and emerging economies showed the trend of steady
growth. The RMB exchange rate saw accumulated appreciation of over
6% against the U.S. dollars, bringing an end to the three consecutive
years of depreciation and recording the largest appreciation in nine
years. According to China’s National Bureau of Statistics, the country’s
gross domestic product grew by 6.9% to RMB82,712.2 billion in 2017.

China’s steady economic growth boosted consumer sentiment. Total
retail sales of consumer goods in the country amounted to
RMB36,626.2 billion, 10.2% higher than the previous year. With the
increasing income levels and purchasing power of consumers,
together with changing consumption attitudes and spending habits,
the underwear market has been undergoing continuous
transformation. The public’s increasing focus on inner quality of life
encouraged the segmentation of underwear products in China while
industry competition intensified as consumers demonstrated
increasing brand awareness. Frequent promotion events in the market
resulted in pressure on gross profit margin. The Group has been
making good use of its brand reputation and advantages established
in the industry to pragmatically respond to changes in the market
environment and promote sustainable business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI i ST

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Current Year”), the Group's
revenue increased by 5.57% over that of the year ended 31 December
2016 (the “Prior Year") to HK$2,339,524,000. Gross profit margin slightly
decreased by 0.69 percentage points to 78.03%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$495,299,000, net profit margin was
21.17%. Earnings per share was HK118.21 cents (2016: HK23.62 cents).
Excluding the gain on the Relocation Arrangement and the respective
income tax expense, earnings per share was HK37.66 cents (2016:
HK23.62 cents).

The Board of Directors of the Company resolved to declare a final
dividend of HK8.00 cents per share (2016: HK4.30 cents) for the Current
Year which, together with the interim dividend of HK2.50 cents per
share (2016: HK2.50 cents) distributed, will bring the total dividend for
the Current Year to HK10.50 cents per share.

Brand management

In 2017, the Group continued to make good use of its multi-brand
strategy and allocated internal resources flexibly. In response to the
enormous mid to high-end consumption market, the Group actively
adjusted its strategies to constantly reinforce the brand images of
EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE and focused on cultivating IVU, E-BRA
and COMFIT as growth drivers of the Group. Through continuously
consolidating the market position and increasing market share,
coupled with positioning the brand E-BRA as the brand for online
shopping and the brand IADORE as the offline wholesale brand, the
Group were committed to implementing an omni-channel coverage.

The Group promoted and advertised its brands and products actively
to enhance brand equity. During the Current Year, the Group
participated in a series of activities in 2017 China (Shenzhen)
International Brand Underwear Fair, Changsha Fashion Week and China
International Knitting Trade Fair (Autumn/Winter) to showcase different
styles of its brands and demonstrate its design capabilities, which laid a
solid foundation for the long-term brand influence.
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In 2017, the Group concentrated more on brand marketing and
promotion through a combination of online platform and offline public
relations activities, and stepped up its investments in online platform.
In particular, at the opening act of Shenzhen Underwear Fair, the Group
additionally adopted the promotion method of live broadcast, as well
as invited Internet celebrities to conduct live online broadcast of
boutique exhibition booths and distribute e-coupons to promote sales
in online shops of the Group. During the Changsha Fashion Week, the
Group conducted a live online broadcast of EMBRY FORM Lingerie
Show and received positive responses on the Internet. In addition,
EMBRY FORM placed its products in a popular drama for the first time.
With a break-in advertisement featuring the characters in the drama,
the elegance and sexiness of EMBRY FORM products were brought to
consumers in a unique and innovative way.

The Group continued to promote its products through spreading its
brand culture on the Internet during the Current Year and
strengthened consumer awareness of its brands to establish a solid
foundation for its online shopping business. In light of the increasingly
mature e-commerce platforms and changes in consumers’ shopping
habits, the Group will launch suitable products to meet customers’
needs and grasp the market development opportunities.
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Sales network

In order to enhance its operating efficiency, the Group continued to
implement its network optimisation strategy during the Current Year.
The Group appropriately adjusted its retail outlets by closing or
relocating stores with lower efficiency so as to enhance the overall
efficiency of its sales network. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
1,925 retail outlets in total, including 1,705 concessionary counters and
220 stores. During the Current Year, there was a net decrease of 142
retail outlets of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group's products were also
available for sale through different online platforms so as to reach out
to more potential customers on the Internet.

Product design, research and development

Under severe market competition in the underwear industry, the Group
has been deeply aware of the importance of upholding high-quality
standards and hence continued to devote resources to the design,
research and development of new products. The Group launched
products with outstanding quality for various markets through
innovation and improvement in patented designs to meet varying
consumer needs.

During the Current Year, the Group launched a variety of well-received
new collections, including: EMBRY FORM's “Elegant Series” ([ /& &
511 1) and “Enjoyable Moments Series” ([ 8% Z B3¢ Z %] |); FANDECIE's
"Dazzling Series” ([ it Y K& & Z 51| |) and “Modern Crossover Series”
([ EEZBBLZ T |); COMFITs “Simple and Comfortable Series” ([ &
#9E7 8 51| ]) and “Blessed Pregnancy Series” ([ &2 £ 7| |); E-BRA's
“Dreamy Orchids Series” ([ 2 52 W4 5 % 1] ]) and “Light and Fresh
Series” ([ 82 #7358 25| |); IADORE's “Floral Fresh Series” ([ {E &5 &F
Z 7l 1) and “Secret Whispers Series” ([ # 2% FL :8 & 7l |); LIZA
CHENG's “Starry Embroidery Series” ([ 2 % I % &%/ ]) and “Aromatic
Love Series” ([ &#k ZE %I ]); IVU's "Fashionable Panties Series” ([ B (&)
W4 Z 51 1) and “Colour Sensation Series” ([ &8 Z 51/ ).

In 2017, the Group obtained 7 new patents, including 3 utility model
patents, 3 invention patents and 1 appearance design patent. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had 11 invention patents, 37 utility model
patents and 3 appearance design patents.
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Production capacity

Over the years, most of the products were manufactured by the Group.
Through the flexible deployment of manpower and machine capacity,
the Group quickly responded to market demand and rapid changes in
consumer preferences. On 23 October 2017, pursuant to the
requirements of Shenzhen’s urban development plan, the Group
entered into a relocation compensation agreement with the developer
to implement redevelopment plan. The Group has entered into a lease
contract for a property in Luohu District in Shenzhen and completed
relocation within the year, with no significant impact on operation.

The Group's intelligent warehouse at the production base in Jinan,
Shandong province was at its trial run stage in 2017 and it progressed
as scheduled.

In addition, in order to meet the future expansion needs of the Group,
on 27 December 2017, the Group engaged a contractor to construct
the second phase of plant premises and ancillary facilities at the
production base in Changzhou, Jiangsu province. It is expected to be
completed in September 2018.

Awards

During the Current Year, various brands of the Group, namely EMBRY
FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT and E-BRA were awarded "Annual
Charity Award of China’s Underwear Industry’, “Annual Industry
Responsibility Award of China’s Underwear Industry’, “Annual
Industry Style Award of China’s Underwear Industry’, “Annual
Innovation Award of China’s Underwear Industry” and “Annual
Brand Equity Award of China’s Underwear Industry” respectively
in China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair.

During the Current Year, the Group was granted the awards of
“National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment —
Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover’, "‘National Excellent
Enterprise with Foreign Investment — Quality Enhancement’
and “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment —
Harmonious Labour Relations Promotion” again by China
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. EMBRY FORM was
accredited by the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and the
Chinese Manufacturers' Association of Hong Kong as the “Hong Kong
Top Brand’ for eleven consecutive years.
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Implementation of the minimum wage policy and tight labour supply
in China have resulted in continuous wage increase. The Group
endeavoured to boost staff loyalty through measures such as
organising training courses and improving employee benefits to
enhance solidarity, thereby improving its overall operational efficiency.
The number of employees of the Group decreased to approximately
7,862 (2016: approximately 8,780). Total staff costs (including wages
and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses, contributions to the
retirement benefits scheme and excluding directors’ and chief
executive's remunerations) for the Current Year was HK$712,289,000
(2016: HK$681,920,000).

Financial Review

Revenue

By sales channel and region

Revenue for the Current Year was HK$2,339,524,000, representing a
5.57% increase over the Prior Year.

During the Current Year, revenue from the retail sales was
HK$1,993,924,000, accounting for 85.23% of the Group's total revenue
and representing an increase of 7.18% over the Prior Year. Revenue
from the Internet and wholesale business decreased by 3.29% from
HK$350,649,000 to HK$339,098,000, accounting for 14.49% of the total
revenue.

The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the Group.
During the Current Year, revenue from the Mainland China market was
HK$2,258,439,000, accounting for 96.53% of the total revenue of the
Group.

By brand and product line

The Group currently operates seven brands, namely EMBRY FORM,
FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IADORE, IVU and LIZA CHENG, serving
customers with different needs and varying degrees of purchasing
power.
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EMBRY FORM, the signature brand, is the main source of income for
the Group and its revenue amounted to HK$1,082,048,000, with its
contribution to the total revenue increasing to 46.25%, mainly due to
the higher discount for EMBRY FORM products during the Current
Year, attracting more consumers to buy this mid- to high-end signature
brand. FANDECIE's revenue increased by 3.65% from the Prior Year to
HK$615,487,000, accounting for 26.31% of the total revenue for the
Current Year. COMFIT s revenue increased by 6.49% from the Prior Year
to HK$205,825,000, accounting for 8.80% of the total revenue for the
Current Year. E-BRA's revenue increased by 8.81% from the Prior Year
to HK$249,664,000, accounting for 10.67% of the total revenue for the
Current Year. LIZA CHENG's revenue for the Current Year increased by
7.49% to HKS$41,861,000. IADORE's revenue increased by 9.85% from
the Prior Year to HK$62,196,000, accounting for 2.66% of the total
revenue for the Current Year. IVU's revenue increased by 10.10% from
the Prior Year to HK$75,941,000, accounting for 3.25% of the total
revenue for the Current Year. The brands’ respective proportion in
revenue mainly reflected the Group's alignment of its business focus to
market development.

Lingerie has always been the Group’s core product. During the Current
Year, sales of lingerie increased by 5.54% over the Prior Year to
HK$2,050,945,000, representing 87.67% of the revenue of the Group.
Sales of sleepwear increased by 6.53% to HK$137,740,000, accounting
for 5.89% of the total revenue of the Group, while sales of swimwear
decreased by 6.34% to HK$119,679,000, accounting for 5.12% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Gross Profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$1,825,492,000, representing an increase of 4.64%
over the Prior Year. Gross profit margin was 78.03%, representing a
slight decrease of 0.69 percentage points from the Prior Year. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the Group's
enhanced effort in promotional activities in response to increasing
market competition.
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Gain on the Relocation Arrangement

During the Current Year, the Group has entered into a relocation
compensation agreement and supplemental agreement with a
developer (the "Relocation Agreements”). Recognition of the gain on
the Relocation Arrangement pursuant to the Relocation Agreements is

HKS$449,980,000 in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards adopted by the Group.

Details of the above are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Other income and gains

Other income rose 69.44% to HK$89,403,000 for the Current Year,
which included the foreign exchange gain of approximately
HK$22,583,000 due to the appreciation of Renminbi.

Operating expenses

During the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses increased by
3.09% to HKS$1,420,233,000 (2016: HK$1,377,636,000), accounting for
60.71% (2016: 62.17%) of the Group's revenue.

The decrease in the proportion of selling and distribution expenses in
overall sales mainly reflected the Group's endeavour to control costs
under the current business environment. The high level of rents of the
retail outlets and the increase in staff costs continued to exert pressure
on operating costs. In 2017, to mitigate rising cost pressure, the Group
closed retail outlets with lower profitability so as to enhance its
efficiency. During the Current Year, contingent rents of the retail outlets
decreased by 0.69% to HK$541,284,000, accounting for 23.14% (2016:
24.60%) of the Group's revenue.

Administrative expenses increased by 2.18% over the Prior Year to
HK$251,056,000, accounting for 10.73% of the Group's revenue.

Net profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$495,299,000 for
the Current Year, representing an increase of 403.34% over the Prior
Year. Net profit margin increased from 4.44% for the Prior Year to
21.17%. The increase in net profit was due to the gain on the Relocation
Arrangement pursuant to the Relocation Agreements. Excluding the
gain on the Relocation Arrangement and the respective income tax
expense, profit attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$157,814,000, representing an increase of 60.38%, which was mainly
attributable to the Group's endeavour to control costs and its effective
multi-brand strategy. Net profit margin increased from 4.44% for the
Prior Year to 6.75%.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated
cash flows. Financial position of the Group remained sound and
healthy during the Current Year. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$234,711,000
(2016: HKS$190,187,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings amounted to HK$326,056,000 (2016:
HK$354,833,000). As at 31 December 2017, the equity interest
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$2,367,110,000
(2016: HK$1,719,487,000). Accordingly, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 13.77% (2016: 20.64%).

Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group
amounted to HK$100,234,000 (2016: HK$210,720,000), which was
mainly used for the intelligent warehouse and the automated supply
chain logistics facility of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the capital
commitments of the Group amounted to HK$262,425,000 (2016:
HK$122,738,000), which were contracted but not provided for in the
financial statements.

Charge on the Group’s assets
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any assets.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2017, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$4,224,000 (2016: HKS4,166,000), comprising 422,417,000 (2016:
416,661,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. The increase in the
number of issued shares resulted from the 2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme
and the 2017 Interim Scrip Dividend Scheme.

Details of the above are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of any
subsidiaries or associated companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out its transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency
transactions and other financial assets and liabilities created in the
ordinary course of the business.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, bank guarantees given in lieu of the Group's
property rental deposits and utility deposits amounted to HK$243,000
(2016: HK$1,788,000). Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other
significant contingent liabilities, nor any litigation or arbitration of
material importance.

Prospect

Looking ahead to 2018, despite the ongoing global political and
economic uncertainty, the domestic economy is expected to maintain
steady growth, supporting consumer confidence in the long-term.
China continues to undergo economic restructuring and is committed
to shifting from a capital-intensive exporting country to a
consumption-oriented economy, which will favour the long-term
healthy development of the economy and retail markets. However,
rising trade protectionism and escalating geopolitical tensions could
derail the nascent recovery in global economic growth, the retail
industry should remain vigilant and be prepared for external economic
uncertainties.

As a major brand operator in the lingerie industry in China, the Group
closely monitors the market dynamics and adopts prudent and flexible
development strategies to actively grasp the development
opportunities and address the upcoming challenges in the market.
With the development and improvement of Internet network and
logistics infrastructure, the e-commerce market has been growing
rapidly. In order to cater for market development and consumer
demand, the Group will intensify its investment and development in
e-commerce and continue to develop exclusive high-quality products.
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With the increase in domestic per capita income and consumption
upgrade in recent years, consumers are increasingly pursuing the
exquisite shopping experience. In order to meet the market demand
for quality services and products, the Group will continue to carry out
multi-brand strategy and launch diverse products for the consumers at
different consumption levels in 2018 to enhance the Group's influence
in the industry. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to optimise its sales
network structure and close underperforming stores, thereby raising
overall operating efficiency.

Moreover, the second phase of the automated supply chain logistics
equipment is now being installed in the intelligent warehouse at the
Group's production base in Jinan, Shandong province, which is
expected to enhance efficiency of the supply chain, optimise
productivity and operating performance, and increase the overall
competitiveness of the Group. In response to the future needs of
business development of the Group, the Group has started the
construction of the second phase of plant premises and ancillary
facilities at the production base in Changzhou, Jiangsu province.

With solid business foundation established over the years, multi-brand
strategy, innovative product portfolio and uncompromising product
quality, the Group is confident of capitalising on its own strengths in
the ever-changing market. The Group will prudently implement and
constantly review its business strategies to foster long-term, steady
business growth and generate satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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According to the national retail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and the
China National Commercial Information Centre in 2017, EMBRY FORM ranked as the top three enterprises in 2016 in
terms of composite market share in similar products in the industry in China, and ranked first in terms of
composite market share with respect to group sales

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded a certificate of National Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product
Quality by the China Association for Quality Inspection

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the awards of National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment —
Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover (2016), Quality Enhancement (2016-2017) and Harmonious Labour
Relations Promotion (2016-2017) by the China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2016) by the
China National Garment Association

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited received the Star Union Award from the General Trade Union of Zhanggiu
District and named by the Zhangqiu Federation of Trade Unions as an Advanced Unit of Financial Work (Audit of
Expenses) (2016)

EMBRY FORM was accredited as Guangdong Top Brand by the Guangdong Top Brand Promotion Committee

EMBRY FORM received award for Top 50 Quality Branded Chains (2017) from the Organising Committee of the
Conference on the Development of Branded Chains in China
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EMBRY FORM received the Annual Charity Award and Annual Industry Responsibility Award of China’s Underwear
Industry (2016-2017) at the 2017 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

FANDECIE, COMFIT and E-BRA were granted the Annual Industry Style Award, Annual Innovation Award and
Annual Brand Equity Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2016-2017) respectively at the 2017 China (Shenzhen)
International Brand Underwear Fair

LIZA CHENG was awarded a certificate of National Quality Standard for Brassiere Products (2017) by the China
Knitting Industrial Association

EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2017) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development Council
and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark by the Hong Kong Tourism
Board

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. received the Chinese Women and Children Charity Award from the All-China Women's
Federation

Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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Executive Directors

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 81, is the Chairman of the Group and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ngok is in charge of the Group's
corporate strategy and business planning. She joined the Group in
1980 and has over 37 years of experience in the lingerie industry.
Madam Ngok graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of
Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China
Agricultural University). She is also a shareholder and director of
Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (an Executive Director
of the Company) and the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an
Executive Director of the Company).

Alln\

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, an Executive Director and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the
Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in 1993 and has over 25 years of
experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California and
a Master of Business Administration (Executive) degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young
Industrialist in Hong Kong in 1999 and was appointed as Vice Chairman
of Shanghai Garment Trade Association in 2008. She obtained the
World Outstanding Chinese Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business
Administration from International American University in March 2009,
and was awarded Fellowship and admitted as Visiting Professor by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and Lincoln
University respectively in September 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng
was elected as the first President of Shenzhen Underwear Association
in August 2012. She is currently a member of the Yangpu Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai,
a member of the China National Textile and Apparel Council, a Vice
Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a specially invited
Vice President of the China Association for Quality Inspection and a
Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles. Ms.
Cheng is also a director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a
substantial shareholder of the Company) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu
(the Chairman of the Group), and the sister of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen
(an Executive Director of the Company).
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Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 68, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research and
Development) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He first joined the
Group in May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017. He is
also a director of Duosiwei Metal and Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co,,
Ltd. and Changzhou Duosiwei Furniture Decoration Construction Co.,
Ltd. He is in charge of the research and development centre of the
Group and is responsible for innovations of technologies, processes
and equipment for the production of products. Mr. Cheng has over 21
years of experience in technological research and development in the
manufacturing of display furniture, display dummies and also garment
processing. Mr. Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the step-son of Madam Ngok Ming Chu
(the Chairman of the Group) and an elder brother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza (an Executive Director of the Company).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 64, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. and the General Manager of Embry
(Shandong) Garments Limited. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the functions of
strategic management and project management in Mainland China.
She joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 38 years of experience
in management and administration. Ms. Lu obtained a Master's degree
in Business Administration from Beihang University (previously known
as Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics), the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), in 2001. She has also obtained an
undergraduate diploma in international trade from the University of
International Business and Economics, the PRC, in 1992. Ms. Lu
completed a senior managers’ human resources management training
course held by Tsinghua University, the PRC, in 2006. She has obtained
the International Project Management Professional Certification since
2002.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 59, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is currently running his own
management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau
has previously worked at an international accounting firm for over 15
years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1981. Mr. Lau is a fellow
member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a member of the worldwide Council of ACCA from May 2002 to
September 2011. Mr. Lau is currently the company secretary of Yeebo
(International Holdings) Limited, Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings
Limited and Expert Systems Holdings Limited, and an independent
non-executive director of Binhai Investment Company Limited, China
Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, Comba Telecom Systems
Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson Holding Ltd. and TCL
Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). He had been an independent non-executive director of
UKF (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until his resignation on 15 March 2016. He had also been an
independent non-executive director of TCL Communication
Technology Holdings Limited, the shares of which were delisted from
the Stock Exchange from 30 September 2016. Mr. Lau also served as an
independent supervisor of the sixth session of Beijing Capital
International Airport Company Limited from June 2014 to June 2017
Mr. Lau joined the Company in November 2006.

Alln\

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, aged 52, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lee is a consultant of Howse Williams Bowers. He
received his LL.B (Honours) degree and Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively.
He was then admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in
England and Wales in 1997. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-
executive director of NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited, Asia
Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Ltd, Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Limited, China BlueChemical Ltd.,
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., Red Star Macalline Group
Corporation Ltd., China Goldjoy Group Limited, FSE Engineering
Holdings Limited and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited, the shares of
these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been an
independent non-executive director of Walker Group Holdings Limited
(now known as Vestate Group Holdings Limited) and Futong
Technology Development Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 1 April 2016 and
18 November 2017. Mr. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.
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Prof. Lee T. S, alias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 69, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. Lee is currently a Chair Professor of
Feng Chia University, Taiwan and the Professor Emeritus of the
Department of Supply Chain and Information Management of Hang
Seng Management College. He was the Dean of the Faculty of
Business Administration of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from
2002 to 2008, Vice-President (Academic & Research) of Hang Seng
Management College from 2009 to 2014 and the Head and Professor
of the Department of Supply Chain and Information Management of
Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2015. Prof. Lee obtained
his PhD in Business Administration and Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Missouri-Columbia, the United
States in 1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master's degree in
Management Science and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof.
Lee's research and teaching interests include supply chain
management, quality management and business process
reengineering. He has published his research in many academic
journals. Prof. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of GET Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

Senior Management

Ms. Fung Kam Lai Katie, aged 57, is the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Ms. Fung is responsible for the supervision and management of
the Group's overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined
the Group in March 2007 as the Internal Audit Director and was
appointed to the present position in July 2010. Ms. Fung obtained a
Master's degree in Business Administration (Executive) from the City
University of Hong Kong. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Fung has over 28 years of experience in
auditing, financial accounting, corporate investment and financing, as
well as management.
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About this report

This report is prepared by Embry Holdings Limited in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Reporting
Guide issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited ("HKEX").

The Group engaged our stakeholders throughout the report
preparation process. Stakeholder engagement helps us to fulfill the
four reporting principles, Materiality, Balance, Quantitative and
Consistency, as outlined by the HKEx. The Group will continue to
enhance how we collect ESG information internally, and improve
how we perform and disclose.

The report discusses information on our policy, efforts and
achievements in environmental, social and governance aspects
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. Unless otherwise
specified, the reporting boundary covers Embry Holdings Limited
and all our subsidiaries.

Naming
In this report, Embry Holdings Limited is referred as “the Group” or

"

"we”,

Source of information and assurance to reliability
Data and case studies mentioned in this report originate from our
own statistical reports and internal documents. The Group confirms
that this report does not contain false or misleading statements. The
Group is responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and
completeness of content of this report.

Board approval
Upon review of the management, this report is approved by the
Board on 22 March 2018.
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Foreword — Our business is beautiful because of
love

As a lingerie company in China, the Group takes action to endow our
business with a richer connotation and a broader meaning. The Group
persists in promoting balance and inclusiveness as well as harmony in
the development of the economy, environment and society. The
Group believes that the greater good of the community shall be
achieved by integrating benefits to individuals, society and nature as a
whole. Under the leadership of our CEO Ms. Liza Cheng, the Group is
living out our belief in every aspect of our business. To provide the
safest and the most comfortable products to our customers, the Group
strictly controls the quality and hazardous substance content of
incoming raw materials. To minimise our environmental impact, the
Group has been designing, building and running our manufacturing
facilities based on ecological principles since 2006. As our success is
inseparable from the contribution of our employees, the Group
therefore strives to strengthen the sense of belonging of our team. The
Group believes it is our mission to promote the health of Chinese
women, and has supported a charitable initiative that promotes
women’s health for 11 consecutive years.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue our efforts to achieve
excellence in promoting women’s beauty and quality of life.

Beautiful craftsmanship

It is our mission to provide our customer with comfortable, healthy and
fashionable lingerie products. The Group is the first lingerie company
in China to have acquired ISO certifications and the China
Environmental Label. From the selection of raw materials to the
processing of finished goods, the Group rigorously controls product
quality at each phase of the production process. The Group also
highlights training provided to our frontline sales ladies to promote
listening attentively to customer opinions and offering the most
satisfying customer service.
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What is China Environmental Labelling?

China Environmental Labelling is issued by China
Environmental United Certification Center (CEC). The
product bearing the label has not only achieved the
optimum quality standard, but its production, use
and treatment processes have also met national
environmental protection requirements. Compared
with similar products, certified products contain less
harmful substances and require less resources to make.
This certification provides better information to customers

on the environmental performance of products and supports
green purchasing decisions. The certification body re-verifies the
Group annually to confirm that our products’ performance meets the
standard. The third-party verification system of the China
Environmental Labelling scheme follows global eco-labelling
practices. China has signed mutual recognition agreements with
Germany, South Korea, Japan, Australia and other countries and
regions. This means that products certified with China Environmental
Labelling are also recognised as eco-products in these countries.

Rigorous quality control

The Group has an effective and robust Quality Management System.
The establishment of various procedures, standards and control
measures has allowed the Group to keep up with the requirements of
various standards on product quality, safety and environmental
performance.

The Group signed the Declaration of Quality and Safety for Underwear
Industry to announce our commitment to assuring product quality
through checking incoming raw materials in accordance with national
and industrial standards. Through signing the Declaration, the Group is
also promising not to make false claims and intentionally mislead our
consumers.

frER [ TREF]?
—f_iﬂfﬁu/uj = (EF‘ .£51E$THL,
BIANE - LRSS P RS (3
T)RFBHROLERAREE -
ERAERTMELESE M
BRE4E ERANREEER
ERHFERENRERER
ko BEFEEMMEL - BBE
S0FE - HHERSRRED -
EERERE /ﬁ%%%ﬁ/\TﬁﬁFuﬂﬁmﬁuu
BHRIRE ﬁﬁbﬂxﬁ%§%§ﬁ£TTziﬁé £ o
RERIEBEES iﬁfﬂ% T BRE
FHHRBERFE W%ﬁﬁﬁmgﬁ°Pﬂﬁ
Fiel B = RJBHEEZBIRIBREMOE
B—8 BRiEAEER 88 BARUR
BNEBRREMERR] TRERSORAE
WE - BESTREFINEREELER
KRB AR BEBHNIRRER o

BiIEmE

RHRFAE—ERR BENEEBERR %
BT - IREMIEHIE R B BUEST » (ELH]
SHEREE Enkd RERITEEFEN
ERBIEENENR -

RHRFBEZET(ARTEEEL2AKE) &

%*éiﬁ‘b HREHETRE BREENAE

TRFE - FRECEGHEE) PR L FFT %
T{’EFETERT, K*{ﬁ REBBESZTR -



Supplier management

Assurance of product safety and comfort begins with controlling the
quality of incoming materials. The Group places high emphasis on the
quality of incoming materials and the performance of suppliers on
quality, environmental management and labour management.

Before the group decides to engage a new supplier, a team formed by
the members of the Procurement Department, Quality Assurance
Department, Design Department, Research and Development
Department and Marketing Department (hereinafter the “supplier
verification team”) conducts verification of the new suppliers’ product
quality, operational risk, and environmental and social performance
based on our internal procedures. Those suppliers who pass the
verification are qualified to become our suppliers.

The Group requires all products from our suppliers fulfilling the
certification requirements of international safety standards (e.g. Oeko-
tex certification) or comparable quality and environmental certification.
The sewage treatment capability of certain suppliers can impact the
environment. It is a concern if suppliers are equipped with effective
sewage treatment facilities. The Group terminates trade relationships
with suppliers who cannot fulfil the aforementioned requirements. As
at 31 December 2017, all suppliers had fulfilled the aforementioned
requirements. The Group is aware of various labour issues in the
garment industry. The Group takes into consideration that whether our
suppliers complies with the labour standards of Worldwide Responsible
Accredited Production.
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What is Oeko-tex Standard 100?

Oeko-tex Standard 100 is an eco-label for textile products, which is
issued by the International Association for Research and Testing in
the Field of Textile and Leather Ecology. The Standard certifies that
the textiles for garment products have been tested for substances
that can be harmful to human bodies, and the content of harmful
substances is below a specific safety limit.

The Group irregularly visits the operational sites of more than 10 critical
suppliers mainly for relationship building, but we also take the
opportunity to review their environmental, social and governance
performance as well. As the Group checks the quality of incoming raw
materials, we may decide to re-verify the supplier if the quality of their
products is continuously unsatisfactory. Based on the mutual-
benefiting principle, the Group's policy is to support our suppliers to
enhance their product quality.

The Group terminates trade relationships with suppliers who cannot
fulfil the aforementioned requirements. The concerned suppliers’
accounts will be frozen in our procurement system to prevent the
Group from purchasing from them before they are re-qualified.

Number of suppliers by geographical region
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Material testing

For any lingerie fabric to enter our production lines, the formaldehyde
content and pH value must be rigorously controlled. The Group also
requires lingerie parts such as lace, cotton cups, linings and shoulder
straps to be light, soft, breathable, eco-friendly and has good
functionality so as to protect women’s health. Before any products are
shipped for sale, they undergo 30 quality tests, which include
environmental, safety, comfort, function and durability tests.
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Testing lingerie by the technician.

F T 8 ¢ EAETTIRE -
Our commitment to customers BEENAE

Apart from providing safe products with high quality, the Group makes
a strong emphasis on providing attentive service and satisfying
reasonable requests in response to our customers’ support.

Service quality

Our sales ladies serve our customers in 1,925 retail outlets across China.
To ensure our sales ladies understand and reach our servicing quality
standards, the Group offers a series of training sessions and
assessments. New recruits must pass on-boarding training, sales
counter supervision and the final probation assessment. Current sales
ladies are required to pass monthly assessments and assessments of
their product knowledge.

An effective complaint handling mechanism is also a big part of service
quality assurance. The Group is committed to maintaining a customer
feedback channel through which customers can reach our managers
directly. If the Group receives a complaint, it is our policy to take swift
corrective action and report back to the concerned customer. Should
the Group receive a valid complaint relating to unsatisfactory service
attitude, we will arrange for retraining to raise awareness of service
quality.
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Listening to our customers

Our customers can call our customer service hotline if they have any
feedback on our product and service quality. It is our policy to replace
any products for free if they are defective. If the Sales Department
receives a complaint regarding our products, the case will be passed to
our complaint investigator of the Quality Assurance (QA) Department.
The investigator will analyse the defective product within 1 working
day. The result of the analysis is then reported back to the customer.

Upon closure of a complaint case, the Group will call the customer to
learn if they are satisfied with our response and investigation. With this
opportunity, the Group also evaluates the customers’ satisfaction with
the sales ladies who served them through telephone survey. In 2017,
more than 99% of these customers expressed satisfaction with our
service.

To holistically realise our commitment to quality, the Group has
formulated the "Quality Incident Handling Management Procedure”.
According to this Procedure, the Group conducts in-depth quality
check of a concerned batch of specific models if there are repeated
complaints made regarding their quality. The Group may also launch
product recalls.
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Protecting customers’ private information

Our customers can register themselves as VIP members to enjoy special
offers. As they register, the Group collects their personal information
such as phone numbers. The Group handles this personal information
with care for the sake of privacy protection. The terminals at the retail
outlets do not store any VIP member information locally. All data is
stored at the company’s main server. Access rights of salesladies to VIP
members’ personal information at retail outlets are limited. The
transmission of personal information between the server and the
terminal at retail outlets is encrypted.

Respecting intellectual property rights
The design, functionality and production techniques for lingerie
products are ever-changing. Lingerie brands are well differentiated by
the special features of their products. To a lingerie business, intellectual
property is a critical asset and a competitive edge.

Respecting the intellectual property rights of other lingerie businesses
promotes positive competition and innovation. The Group insists to
create our own products and does not plagiarise other companies’
designs. To avoid being accused for infringing on other companies’
copyrights, the Group has devoted significant effort to researching new
designs created by other lingerie companies to avoid introducing
similar designs to the market. The Group also learns from our suppliers
about the type of materials that our competitors select so as to avoid
introducing similar products. The Group does not adopt open-source
design patterns since we may risk using same patterns as others. On
the technical side, our dedicated technicians research the relevant
patents filed every quarter and analyse the technique, to make sure the
Group does not copy patented techniques.

The Group highly values innovation. With the effort of our design and
technical teams, the Group has drafted 30 industrial standards. The
Group has now more than 50 proprietary technology patents (please
refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis chapter). To protect
our own intellectual property rights on proprietary style, materials and
patterns, the Group requires our suppliers to sign non-disclosure
agreements to prevent our products from being imitated.
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Realising our green dream

To benefit nature, the Group pays attention to how our operation
interacts with the environment, and how the Group can contribute to
sustainability. Our environmental footprint comes from the operation
of our production base and our production process. As early as 2006,
the Group has planned for construction of green industrial parks. Our
Shandong Industrial Park and Changzhou Industrial Park were built and
operate in an eco-friendly manner. According to our “Resource and
Energy Saving and Control Procedure” and "Resource and Energy
Saving Management Regulations”, the Group strives to minimise the
wastage of raw materials during manufacturing, and reuses and
recycles residual materials as much as possible.

Green operational sites

The Group puts a strong emphasis on minimising the environmental
impact of our production plants. Our recently-built major
manufacturing production base, the Shandong Industrial Park and
Changzhou Industrial Park, were planned, designed and built in an eco-
friendly manner. They are considered 'beautiful projects’ as they have
achieved sustainability as industrial plants.
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[t is common for manufacturing plants to spend a tremendous amount
of energy in warming and cooling. Our two industrial parks employ
geothermal heat pumps for temperature control. The geothermal heat
pumps allow energy-efficient temperature control by utilising earth as
a heat source in winter and heat sink in summer. Air-conditioning
powered by geothermal heat pumps saves 40% of energy as compared
to other central air-conditioning systems, and is also less polluting.
1,760 MWh and 420 MWh of electricity has been saved by the
Shandong and Changzhou Industrial Parks respectively.

To further reduce the demand of our factories for air-conditioning, the
Group has installed spraying systems inside the production workshops
of Shandong Industrial Park for cooling and air purification. Spraying
nozzles are also installed in gardens. Fresh, cool air is directed to the
workshops for cooling through underground pipes by ventilating
machines. This system can achieve energy savings of 125 MWh per
year. The Changzhou Industrial Park is equipped with motorised
curtains for shading, thus preventing the introduction of solar radiation
heat and loss of cool air in the summer. This could save 10%-15% of
electricity consumption for cooling.

Material use for building facades also helps to significantly reduce
energy consumption. Buildings in the Shandong Industrial Park employ
a steel-concrete frame structure, and the facade and roof is made of
materials such as aerated concrete blocks, concrete polystyrene board,
aluminium-magnesium-manganese alloy plates and glass wool. The
facade for the manufacturing block and dormitory of Changzhou
Industrial Park uses aluminium insulation boards while the roof is built
from foamed concrete. Windows and glass curtain walls are made of
insulating broken bridge glass. 50% of energy used for air conditioning
can be saved due to these features.
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The roofs of the industrial parks have anti-UV skylights. Natural light is
well utilised all year round for annual energy savings of 790 MWh.
Outdoor light fixtures are solar-powered or are LED models,
contributing 140 MWh of annual energy savings. Infrared sensors are
installed for controlling indoor lights in the Changzhou Industrial Park,
contributing annual energy savings of 4.8 MWh.

The Group is also taking action to enhance water consumption
efficiency. Water used for landscaping can be recycled. Upon treatment
by our own biochemical wastewater treatment plant, domestic sewage
can be reused for landscaping purposes. Sewage from the canteen
passes through a grease trap before being directed to the municipal
sewage network.
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Windows and glass curtain walls are made of insulating
broken bridge glass, reduce the loss of cool air.
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Our beautiful green industrial parks EE & TX£E

Our industrial parks are extraordinary. Unlike many other manufacturing plants, they represent harmony between the
natural vegetation, water bodies and buildings. They are the best reflections of our commitment to the natural
environment. The industrial parks receive visitors such as business partners and customers so as to demonstrate our
environmental vision. This helps enhance our brand value.

PR METLREEL N —REOEESEN - HERELES TRAERIE - BLwE  BHELFAFEA
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Making use of natural soil and streams, the Group grows organic crops such as wheat and corn. The Group makes
agricultural goods such as wheat flour for our internal use or as gifts for visitors. Ducks and geese are kept in the Industrial
Park and manure is collected for feeding fish, and fish excrement is in turn used to fertilise our organic crops. As such, a
natural nutrient chain is formed.

MARANTIEFNE - ROEIEXEANREE T AREEDNNE - TKRE - UABELRIEMEENZER
FREMHEENSEAMERTEIRGE  BATKE TS - UERRS KO ERIEROESRER
BAEEIERABHIERRE - IEE - EITXERRNMEK T EREHE o

The Group grows fruits and vegetables in our Changzhou Industrial Park, which are harvested for visitors and employee
catering.

HAEFMNIEEAER T REMNGHX EHYRARETEARGREIER -

Visitors to our industrial parks have expressed their appreciation of our way of living out sustainability where the Group
manufactures our products.

RBSBNEZHLHF AR METERLEN R - R IEL S MIRBENG B REEREEEIEED
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Energy saving measures has also been implemented at the Shenzhen — Z 4 » ZF]75 INB I A BR K R I £ E EH AV IR
production base. Starting from 2016, all 2,948 light fixtures in the offices B2 o 2016 FE RIS TN A EBRRBD
and workshops of our Shenzhen site have been replaced by LED lights, 222,948 X BBEA/E B 2 S F K LED & « 4 E
reducing the energy consumed for lighting by around 40%. Production =5 RS BRRRFB B Lk BB 85 & 49 40% : SR 5 IR 5L
equipment is now driven by energy-saving motors. The Group regularly — S78¢ 5% » WEBEITEBREIIFE - #3F KR
maintains our machines so that they run at their best efficiencies. This & R 17{F FRREE - (P A EERE R EATEHE L
reduces energy consumption for production equipment by around  10-13% - & £20174E12 A318 - FY £ EHE
10%-13%. As of 31 December 2017, the Shenzhen production base BB ELL 2016 F & Z1.7% » FIIMEFHE LT
saved 1.7% power more than in 2016. Employees are arranged to work 22 L HEfE R — 25 T 15 - Wiz % hnIT & 5k -

at the same areas and periods of time so that air-conditioning and  {FZe M BB A AR E R A& M ERE M o
lighting are only required at concentrated locations and time periods.
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The Hong Kong and Shanghai offices are equipped with LED lights. For
the Hong Kong office, 11.5 MWh of electricity can be saved annually.
The Group also reminds employees to turn off lights, computer
monitors and air-conditioning if they are not in use. These save around
6%-10% of energy at offices. The 50W halogen lamps in the fitting
rooms of our mainland retail shops have been replaced with LED
lamps. Lamps can be switched off when not in use, saving 120 MWh in
2017. Our 16 retail shops in Hong Kong have installed with LED lights
which saved approximately 174 MWh energy annually compare with
using halogen lamps.

Annual energy consumption’ of the Group in 2017 was 18,116 MWh.

ZHIT5 2017 FEMNAEIERE S 118,116 K ELBF ©

Annual water consumption? of the Group in 2017 was 204,313 m3.
ZHF 2017 FEMNBFEKESR2204,3132 75K °
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Annual carbon footprint® of the Group in 2017 was 17,012 tonnes CO_-e.

ZHEF 2017 FEABREKRER 17,02 _F{tHEE -

Green manufacturing

Our production process includes moulding, cutting, sewing and
packaging. No polluting process, such as dyeing and enzyme washing,
is involved. Our main environmental footprint is therefore the
generation of scrap materials such as cloth and foam. The Group has
reduced our environmental impact by enhancing the utilisation rate of
raw materials and recycling any scrap generated.
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! The energy consumption figure does not cover our sales offices in mainland China. The energy consumption at sales offices was deemed insignificant as
compared to the energy consumed by the Group. We therefore have not taken into account the energy consumption at sales offices.

! FETEE LI URAMANEENER - BUNBESENAREEN S - HENFRRELTEKR T T4t -

2 The water consumption figure covers only our Shandong, Changzhou and Shenzhen production bases and offices. The Group does not consume water in
significant quantities in other operational sites and we therefore have not reported that figure.

2 FREFASERILR  BMERINEEE D RPAE « TFRFEE MU EB TS RKREFK - TFHsH e

3 Carbon footprint covers Scope 1 and Scope 2 only. Scope 1 carbon footprint refers to the carbon emissions associated with fuel consumption for
company vehicles. Scope 2 carbon footprint refers to the carbon emissions associated with purchased electricity. Our boundary for the Scope 2 carbon
footprint is as same as that for energy consumption.
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In 2017, the Group introduced software to improve the material
utilisation rate by 1-2%. This software has already applied at our three
production bases.

The technical team is responsible for determining the material
utilisation rate target for products. The Manufacturing Department
strictly controls the quantity of material used according to the technical
guidelines to minimise material wastage.

Waste generated from our manufacturing sites includes foam, cloth,
and accessory and carton box scraps. Domestic waste is also generated
from the dormitory in relatively small quantities. After compression,
scrap materials are collected and treated by qualified recyclers.
Packaging materials and domestic waste are segregated as recyclable
and not recyclable before being collected and treated by municipal
services.
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Upcycling at Changzhou &M T B W [ AR EE ]

Our team at Changzhou makes use of scrap materials to create arm sleeves, cleaning tools and sachet for internal use or
employee lotteries.

EMNIZEAEBARDL RENFBEA/ARBEE—L/ )Y WHE - BRIA FEE  BRAIEMK
ETRPRNERSE  RITHEEE -

.

Starting from 2016, all our packaging plastic bags are made of 20165 # @ THIFERMANBLEBRRARSA
degradable plastics. Such material decomposes under anaerobic D EREBATE! - FERIEEBERNE R T E€HBE D
conditions, such as when buried in landfills. The Group provides f# > 24h - $HEBRABETIRH AR AT
recyclable paper bags to customers at retail outlets instead of plastic  B#KLY - AJLAE#EE B -

bags.

4

In 2017, the Group’s overall material utilisation rate was 81.52%.

2017 TR FHEEBRBHEERNAEHN581.52% °

The Group has recycled 105.22 tonnes of scrap materials and packaging materials®.

FRZFASTERTRARRBEYE 105.2208 4 -

The Group consumed 516.17 tonnes of cloth, 338 tonnes of foam, and 285.43 tonnes of degradable plastic bags.
FREAFZERTHH516.71 0 - S5 338M - RED HB 2285431 -

This figure covers only the Shandong and Changzhou Industrial Parks. We have not recorded the quantity of scrap material generated from our Shenzhen
production base.

BEANEEEDHEKESILRTEXEREMNTEE 28T  RIMEMELZAHOAEEEREE - KRERAHT -



Our beautiful team

Competent human resources is the core driver of the Group. The
Group relies on our team to maintain the quality of our products and
services, live out our business vision and ensure the sustainability of
our business. Through providing training, organising cultural activities
and improving employee benefits, the Group has built sense of
belonging for our employees, and has cultivated a beautiful team.
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Compliance with Labour Regulations

Our human resources management policy has fulfilled the
requirements outlined in the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Employment Ordinance of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. The Group is committed to providing a
pleasant working environment for all employees, including the workers
in our industrial parks and sales ladies at our retail outlets.

The Group signs employment contracts with our employees in a
voluntary, mutually respectful manner. For expiring employment
contracts, the Group renews the contract on time. For employees
whose job duty subject to change, the Group revises the contract
terms before the employees start their new positions. According to the
terms outlined in the employment contract, the Group selects and
develops employees, issues wages, provides injury and sick benefits,
and dismisses employees in accordance with the law.
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The Group provides reasonable wages and benefits, which are above
the minimum level as required by law. Manufacturing workers are
remunerated based on the quantity of goods processed. If their wages
do not reach the statutory level due to low work efficiency, the Group
will pay the statutory wage. Overtime work is compensated monetarily
or by annual leave in accordance with the law. Long service awards
and performance bonuses are issued to outstanding individuals. In
mainland China, on top of the statutory labour benefits, the Group
offers benefits such as housing allowances, travel allowances, quarterly
bonuses, paid annual leave, accident insurance, health checks,
women'’s health checks, annual awards, annual dinner, birthday and
festival gifts, and support to employees facing difficulties.

In mainland China, our manufacturing staff and office staff working
hours are determined under the Standard Working Hour System. Paid
annual, wedding, compassionate, maternity, nursing and paternity
leave is offered in accordance with the national, provincial and
municipality law. When overtime work is required, employees are paid
as set out in the law. The working hours of sales ladies in mainland
China are determined by our comprehensive working hour system,
where our employees entitle to paid annual leave and overtime pay as
set out in the law. Hong Kong back-end employees work 8.25 hours
per day and 5 days per week. Sales ladies in Hong Kong work 9 hours
per day (including 1 hour paid lunch) and 6 days per week.

The Group does not tolerate employment of child or forced labour. As
the Group takes a people-oriented approach, so far there have not
been cases of employing forced labour. Also, the Group is committed
to providing an equal opportunity to everyone for employment,
training and career development. The Group does not treat employees
differently in appraisal and remuneration due to gender, race, ethnicity,
religion, pregnancy, physical impairment, marriage status or family
position. The Group provides a comprehensive career development
ladder. The assessment criteria for promotion are only based on
position requirements. The Group does not tolerate direct or indirect
discrimination.

Employees can report violations of labour regulations either identifiably
or anonymously to their supervisors, the Human Resources
Department, the Internal Audit Department or the Union through
email and comment boxes. The Group also solicits employee
comments from the General Manager mail box, quarterly executive
meeting and annual satisfaction survey.

In 2017, no reports regarding non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to labour standards were received.
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Building a beautiful team

The Group sees every employee as part of a big family. A variety of
extra-curricular activities are organised to build our team and create a
sense of belonging.

Our Shandong and Changzhou Industrial Parks are very refreshing and
harmonious places to work and live. In these parks, the Group has
created comfortable rest and exercise spaces. The Group organises
birthday parties, cultural events, manual skill contests, networking
events and dinners. The Group organises ping-pong and basketball
tournaments, sports days and hiking, and provides gymnasiums,
basketball courts and ping-pong rooms.
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As a business which cares about women's health, the Group cares
about the health of our employees. For example, the Group arranges

health checks for married female employees in Shenzhen who are of
childbearing age.

5%
2%
3%
2%
18%

tER—RHBEZERENTE - BB AT
B TE S ORREE - Bl - LR A RHRIN
BEREIRZETOESRFLRERE -

70%

Male Female Overall

ES Lot

Manufacturing Department AEEBP 2% @ 18%  20%
Sales Department SHEEEPFT 3% 70% 73%
Other Departments HAbEBFT 2% @ 5% 7%
The Group £H 7% 93% 100%

The table above presents the distribution of employees by nature of position and gender as at 31 December 2017.
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Occupational health and safety

As an apparel company, the Group pays attention to occupational
health and safety (OHS) management, and has appointed the Safety
Management Division to oversee OHS matters. The Group has a series
of safety-related documents, such as the “Safe Production

now

Management Regulations”, “Working Environment Management
Procedure”, "Emergency Response Plan”, etc. Our Safety Specialists
conduct safety checks daily, and build a ‘Safety Hazards Correction

Record’ to monitor corrective actions taken by operational units.

The Group has control measures for the three major safety hazards at
our workshops. First, manufacturing equipment such as cutters must
be operated with care. Operators are equipped with goggles and
baffles to avoid eye injuries from needles, and with anti-cutting wire
gloves to avoid cuts. The safety operating procedures at each position
and machines are clearly displayed. Necessary warning signs are placed
at locations that are safety hazard hotspots. Second, employees are
equipped with dust marks to avoid disease due to inhalation of dust.
Ventilation is a top priority of workshop design and indoor humidity is
maintained at 40% to 70%. Third, operators are equipped with earplugs
as machining noise may put their health at risk. The noises received by
workers are controlled below the limit determined by national
regulations.
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Safety awareness and skill training is crucial in maintain a safe
workplace. Training provided to manufacturing employees includes
the “Cutter Operating Safety Guidelines”, "Production Equipment
Maintenance Practice”, etc. Manufacturing employees receive factory-
level, workshop-level and team-level safety training to acquire
knowledge of safe operation. They must prove that they can operate

machines safely before they are allowed to operate them.

The Group regularly organises fire drills and talks on fire safety.
Evacuation maps are displayed at key locations at our operation sites.

The Group notices that sales ladies may suffer from varicose veins if
they stand for too long. Sales ladies may also suffer from ergonomic
problems if their posture is not correct. The Group reminds sales ladies
of correct posture, and requires them to move goods in smaller
batches. In case of injury, the Group requires the respective
departments to keep a complete injury case record, which includes the
location and date of incident, and how the incident happened. As
such, the Group can monitor the injury rate and evaluate how we have
performed in OHS. The Group has realised that the main reason for
incidents is limited safety awareness and has applied preventive
actions. In the future, the Group plans to enhance our safety training,
ensure our safety management practices and guidelines are
implemented, and reducing the frequency and magnitude of work
injuries.
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Male Female
5 z
Manufacturing Department A EERPT 3 17
Sales Department H & BB 0 6
Other departments HMERRT 1 4
Number of recordable incidents® in 2017 by gender and nature of position
TR R ESPIE 7 IR 2017 FEAR) L5 5
Male Female
5 z
Manufacturing Department A EEERPY 153 0.85
Sales Department FHE BT 0 0.09
Other departments H b 36 PT 0.46 0.99

Number of recordable incident rates (per 200,000 employee-hours)® in 2017 by gender and nature of position

IR R EBFI2) 7 - ZHFE 2017 FryEE 20 28 Ths T 15%°

Recordable incident refers to incidents of employee injury and occupational disease as a result of occupational activities or occupational-related activities.
For such injuries, The Group will register cases with the Social Security Bureau, and considers them as recorded incidents for the Group. If the Social
Security Bureau does not consider the case as an injury, The Group will be responsible for the medical expense.

5 ITEREATNEIAREREF I EEAREZEHAWNEDNMEINTRERGENEEREE - AEESRHERF TN EBETY
BHENEE  ARHEMMRBRBLIE  HRBAREAILENERNTEERE HREARTEALEGY  HANBEEEBERAHARTMHU

E The incident rate is calculated by this formula: (Number of recordable incidents + total working hours x 200,000).

o TEHEEZFAEARNA (TERE ~ FELITERE X 200,000) ©
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Employee training

The Group is committed to providing the right training to employees
to enhance their skills. Most training for back-end employees and sales
ladies are conducted through the e-learning platform. The e-learning
platform helps the company to monitor and facilitate employee
training progress. Each employee needs to complete 6 learning credits
for each quarter. There are three categories of training on the
e-learning platform. The first category is on-boarding training, which
include regulations, position-specific instructions, awareness training
to environmental awareness, fire safety, 55 management approach, etc.
The second category is position-specific skill-based training, such as
“Brand Image, Service and Sales” for the Sales Department. The third
category is training for promotion and switching positions, which are
arranged for specific employees based on appraisal results. Such
training can be related to knowledge, skills and attitude.

For manufacturing employees, the Group provides offline training,
which includes fire safety, OHS, safety for special tasks, emergency
response, quality and environmental management system, product
knowledge, quality awareness, operation of intelligent equipment, etc.

Manufacturing Department 4 EEBPT
Sales Department #HE FB
Other departments H b EBFT
Group average £ETH

Annual average hours of training received by department.
WNEFIRESPIE| S - 2 B T AV TR I8

Beautiful actions we take

To benefit the community, the Group strives to promote an ethical
business environment for the lingerie industry and partners with
industrial organisations to promote the development of the Chinese
lingerie industry. The Group hopes that the overall performance of the
industry can be raised to provide more healthy, trendy and quality
products for Chinese women. At the same time, the Group is engaged
in charitable activities. For many years, we have partnered with the
China Women's Development Foundation to help ethnic minority
women in poverty. In Hong Kong, the Group donates products to non-
profit organisations every year.
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In 2017, the Group donated lingerie products worth HK$37,000 to Christian Action.
R2017F > ZAFTAEERBITSHRE TREN BN 37,000ARER °



Operate ethically

The Group strives to promote an ethical business environment for the
lingerie industry. The Group promises to act honestly and do not
tolerate any acts of bribery. The "Commercial Anti-Corruption
Agreement” outlines our zero-tolerance policy for bribery, and our
procedure in any case of bribery. The Agreement is applicable to all our
employees. Suppliers are required to sign the Agreement before the
Group signs a formal procurement contract with them so that they
endorse our anti-corruption policy. Our Internal Audit Department
regularly checks that with all suppliers have signed the Agreement.

The Group has set up a “whistle-blowing” mailbox for any individuals to
report bribery. According to our “Administrative Disciplinary
Management Regulations’, an employee is immediately dismissed if
proven to be involved in a bribery case. If the employee has broken the
law, he or she will be prosecuted and charged by the judiciary.

In 2017, no reports regarding bribery and other unethical acts were
received. There were also no legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or our employees.

Promoting the development of the Chinese lingerie
industry

The Group is a member of various lingerie industry organisations. The
Group has enhanced the overall quality of the industry and nurtured
new talents through organising, supporting, and sponsoring different
events. In 2017, the Group is members of industry associations such as
the Shenzhen Underwear Association, China Knitting Industrial
Association, Shenzhen Garment Industry Association, Shenzhen Textile
Industry Association and Shanghai Garment Trade Association.

The Group is the chairing organisation of the Shenzhen Underwear
Association. As the chairing organisation, the Group supports the
Association to connect the industry, government and academia. In the
last three years, the Association has introduced creative projects to
incubate potential brands and facilitate the transformation and
advancement of the industry. The establishment of the Shenzhen
Shangyuan Underwear Maker Space and the Shenzhen Underwear
Innovation Research and Development Centre are two examples.
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The Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign

The Group has organised the “Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign” jointly
with China Women'’s Development Foundation for 11 consecutive
years. The Campaign is a flagship charitable project in which the Group
develops a new and correct approach to healthy living and beauty for
Chinese women. In the last 11 years, the Group has visited 18 provinces
and autonomous regions all over the country and has donated a total
of nearly RMB49.6 million in kind over the years. The Group has
supported women in poverty of various ethnic minorities, such as the
Zhuang, Yao, Manchu, Miao, Dong, Korean, Mongolian, Tibetan, Dai
and Qiang minorities.
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China International Homewear Creation Design Competition F E BB ER K& R AR A E

The Shenzhen Underwear Association has organised the China International Homewear Creation Design Competition for 5
consecutive years. The Group continued to be a title sponsor of the Competition. The objective of the Competition is to
promote the idea of ‘enhancing quality of life with design’, and nurture more creative talents on homewear design, so as to
promote the overall design standard of the homewear industry. After many years of development, this Competition has

become a well-regarded contest inject vitality to homewear in China.
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The Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign

In 2017, The Group partnered with the China Women'’s Development
Foundation to donate articles worth RMB7.26 million to women in
need in Shenzhen, Shanghai, Shandong, Jiangsu, Hunan, Yunnan and
Tianjin. As part of the Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign, we visited
Shaoyang Country, Hunan and Yuxi City, Yunnan and made donations
to the women. Blue Ribbon Volunteers, which include our employees,
visited the homes of recipients to present them with the donations.
Knowledge is the best charity, The Group also organized health
seminar and promote the importance of health knowledge.

For 11 consecutive years, the flagship Blue Ribbon Charity Campaign
has become a symbol of The Group’s perseverance in giving back to
society. Charity is a long-term commitment. As a renowned lingerie
business, the Group will work with partners from different sectors to
contribute to the cause.
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Health specialists accompanied our volunteers to promote
health knowledge to minority women.
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Our volunteer visited women

in Yuxi City, Yunnan.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality analysis

We believe comments of our stakeholders will help us to evaluate our
performance on environmental, social and governance aspects
objectively and comprehensively. As part of our day-to-day operation,
the Group engages our stakeholders through various channels to
understand how we can do better on ESG aspects.

To prepare this ESG Report, the Group engaged an independent
consultant to design and implement specific stakeholder engagement
exercises and evaluate how we have impacted our stakeholders in
2016. The targeted stakeholders were employees, investors, customers,
suppliers, shopping mall partners, community partners and industrial
association representatives. They were engaged through online
surveys, focus groups and individual interviews. Through an analysis of
the stakeholder engagement findings, we summarise how our
stakeholders understand and comment on our ESG performance, and
their expectations for our future work.

Stakeholder engagement findings and discussion with senior
management on the relevance of the ESG aspects to our business are
two pillars of the materiality of the respective ESG aspects.

From the results of the evaluation, the following 13 aspects were
identified as material aspects which will be the framework for future
reports. The Group has already disclosed the management approach
and performance in relation to these material aspects in the report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Aspects Materiality Matrix for Embry
RAFEE  HFRELIMEEEHSNERE

21

Importance to Stakeholders
HAAHRIAFESGREEEMMSE
o
lo

v

Relevance to Embry’s Business
RIS EEBHARESGREEENMNSE

# Environment Employment and Labour Practices Community o Operatlng Practices
Sk v manm ERRETEARE HESE Sf v eavEaE
Number Category ESG aspects
R k-l BiE - HEREREHE
3 Environment Environmental impact of raw materials
RE&EA FEEEERER R ENRENTE
10 Enhance environmental performance of suppliers
B RER i NIRFER R FHEMKER
12 Employment and Labour Practices Employee morale
RIERS TEREAE REEEIERHE
13 Occupational health and safety
REETIMHBER2RR
14 Training and development
RMHEIHENIERE
15 Child and forced labour
B L1 FAEE T Jomia 45 8
16 Compliance with labour regulations
e B IENZER
22 Operating Practices Anti-corruption
HEEEEA REER
23 Selecting suppliers with good ESG performance
BEEARENTERARENHER
24 Product quality assurance
REERES
25 Service quality assurance
RIERBEE
26 Respecting intellectual property rights
BEMBER
27 Protect personal information

REHEENRLEBEAGER

The results of this analysis are a key foundation of this report. Also, A ITFIBMERZRFIGRAREN —EAES
comments from stakeholders are valuable to our future strategies. &ig - A HEEREARMMERKER
B R M A I H5 -
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Index
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Aspects,

General Disclosures Related chapters

and KPIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE  —REER

Aspect Al: Emissions fETH A1 : BERRY)

General Disclosure Information on: Realising our green dream

—MRIRER @  the policies; and (Page 40)

KPI A1.1
RS IBIZ AL

KPI A1.2
RS RUEIZ A2

(o) compliance with relevant laws =B TR2AR AT (5540H)

and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
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(b) BFHBETABERATEN
HEER LRI E R

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

e R ARRR R EUE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in  Green operational sites
tonnes) and, where appropriate, (Page 40)

intensity (e.g., per unit of production  $Ti&E&kBEEH (40 8)
volume, per facility).

RERBESRE (ABETE) K&

(ER) ==

Our operation does not
involve significant emission to
the environment. The Group
is therefore not reporting on
this figure.

EZE bz R 0E VR u I E SR
REHERZER TR -
EL AR B &ET



Aspects,

General Disclosures Related chapters

and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks

BE - —REER

BREMIER ik mER%E Mt aE

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in Our operation does not

FRSAE IR A13

KPIA14
FABAEIIRIR AL 4

KPIA15
FABAEMUIERALS

KPIA1.6
FABEIIEIRALG

tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FELESREEYRE (LANEETH)
k(mER)wE

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of production
volume, per facility).
PREAREREEYEE(VANEETE)
K (Em) &% E

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

R IR B R E M AR

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous waste is handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEIEEERBEEEEYN
& RIEEEEMNEERFTEK
o

involve generation of
hazardous waste in significant
quantities. The Group is
therefore not reporting on
this figure.

ES bR VE VsV E SR
REBREZEY - FILK
Bitat o

Green manufacturing
(Page 44)
HITReLE(F48)

Green operational sites
(Page 40)
Tk EEEN (F40H)

Green manufacturing
(Page 44)
HITHREEE(F48)
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Aspects,
General Disclosures Related chapters
and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER
BRERER it RERE Ft 7E
Aspect A2: Use of Resources [EE A2 : & JR{E A
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of Realising our green dream
—MIFE resources, including energy, water (Page 40)
and other raw materials. EEIEFELE
BREREIR(BIERER - KEE (F408)
bR L) BB
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Green operational sites
RS2 WEIZ A1 consumption by type (e.g. electricity, (Page 40)
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and ~ TiE4R BB &1 (5540 8)
intensity (e.g., per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RS D EE R SR
RERERTE
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and Green operational sites
AR IEBIEIZA22 intensity (e.g., per unit of production  (Page 40)
volume, per facility). i EEE (F408)
BFREKENEE
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency ~ Green operational sites
BAREIEIZEA23 initiatives and results achieved. (Page 40)

B RE IR A s aT S AR o TEMRBESH (F408)
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Aspects,
General Disclosures Related chapters
and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER
AREMER Rt RERE Mt =E
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any Our operation does not
FASRARBUIEIE A24 issue in sourcing water that is fit for involve consumption of water
purpose, water efficiency initiatives in significant quantities. The
and results achieved. Group does not have any
i SR _ EE A RE - issue in sourcing water. We do
AR IRF KRz 5T & R R o not have programs for
enhancing water
consumption efficiency, but
we recycle landscaping water
in our industrial parks.
LRI E R EMEBS
BRERK - MAEERFK
R ERERRIFERE - Eitt
FEEEREARGRTAK
Mamatdl - BEIERER
SRREAREAK -
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for Green manufacturing

BASRAE R IR A2S

finished products (in tonnes) and, if ~ (Page 44)
applicable, with reference to per unit H#{TARBEE (F44H)
produced.
%ﬁxuuﬁﬁ}% BEMEREE K (10
R)BEEBEMEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources JBTH A3 : IR K KA LR

General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI A3.1
BASHERIEIR A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s Green operational sites
significant impact on the (Page 40)

environment and natural resources. ¥ B4R 2B & (40 B)
WRFTBRELIRE R RAER

ENERTZENBR

Description of the significant impacts Our beautiful green industrial
of activities on the environment and  parks (Page 43)

natural resources and the actions Green manufacturing

taken to manage them. (Page 44)

A EBHRBELARAAER ZEBNEETIEE(F43EH)
WEBEAZERERRITE - HITHREEE(F48)
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Aspects,

General Disclosures
and KPlIs

B - —REER
BREMIER

Related chapters
Descriptions in this report
it RERE

Remarks

B &

Aspect B1: Employment B B1 : {E{&

General Disclosure

— AR R

KPIB1.
FABEAR xﬁz?aﬁfm

KPI B1.
Eafed xﬁaﬁﬁm 2

Information on: Our beautiful team

(@)  the policies; and (Page 47)
(b)  compliance with relevant laws EEEEBRL OB E
and regulations that have a (%478)

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

BAs LR E BB LREA

THERE - REY TEKe - %

Tt~ RIBERIAREMFERE

FEY -

@ B R

(b) HEEEERROINEER

Total workforce by gender, Building a beautiful team

employment type, age group and (Page 49)

geographical region. EEREEEK(F498)
IR - EIEEE - FhedRI R

lmE e E B AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender,

age group and geographical region.
ZIER - FHAA R R B 5 A
EBEMRKLE -

The Group considers a break
down by gender and nature
of position better reflects our
demography.

2RI AT R K #B P
27 BE B af i IR BR 22 A 55
BB I MR -

Our turnover rates for male
and female employees are
3.47% and 3.35% respectively.
ZHRF2017FZBHEET
MEER347% » TR
3.35% °



Aspects,

General Disclosures
and KPlIs

B - —REER
BARENER

Descriptions

i

63

Related chapters
in this report Remarks
RERE Mt aE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety [E[FI B2 : i@ fREL%Z 2

General Disclosure
— R EE

KPI B2.1
A2 48 B IZ B2

KPIB2.2
FABAERIE R B22

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BRERMLT 2 TIERRERIRES
THRZBREREN
@ BE:kK
(b) MHEEERROINER

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.

HImtTOAZB MR -

Lost days due to work injury.

HIBBEATIERS -

Occupational health and
safety (Page 50)
THERRERZZ($E508)

There was no case of fatality
in 2017.

20175 RAIFUEE T
AIERART -

The Group considers injury
rates are better performance
indicator than number of lost
days.
ZHRFABHERTIEE
STERE - ZRMRR/IT
BERABREZEVIEE -
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Aspects,
General Disclosures Related chapters
and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER
BRERER it RERE MiaE
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health Occupational health and
BB E IR B23 and safety measures adopted, how  safety (Page 50)
they are implemented and TEREEEZZE (FE508)
monitored.

IR PTER AR B R R R 2 2 4
it ARAMBERITRERTTL -

Aspect B3: Development and Training €8 B3 : 28 K13

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ Employee training (Page 52)
—RR IR EE knowledge and skills for discharging B L3I (E528)

duties at work. Description of training

activities.

BRARITE TRE1T TERE M
BN AR BERBR - fE A o

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained All employees have received
BASRAE IR 1E B3 by gender and employee category training provided by the
(e.g., senior management, middle Group.
management). FIEEIHAEEX NEIE
RIERI K g BRI 815 8 XAl E HEIE o
BAN -
KPIB3.2 The average training hours Employee training (Page 52)
RS AE IE1EB3.2 completed per employee by gender 8 T8I (5 528)

and employee category.
BRI REEBERE D - BRIk
B e X Al Y1 i B



Aspects,

General Disclosures Related chapters

and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER

BREMIER ik mER%E Mt aE
Aspect B4: Labour Standards fETH B4 : 45 T %8

General Disclosure Information on: Compliance with Labour

—MIFE (@)  the policies; and Regulations (Page 47)

(b)  compliance with relevant laws B &4 T30 (47 8)
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
BN IEE Teoablss T :
@ BE: X
(b) MHEERRROINER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Compliance with Labour
FASR AR BUIE 1R B4.1 employment practices to avoid child  Regulations (Page 47)
and forced labour. BREETIEM(F478)

AR & FRESE DI O 15 i AL 48
BT MEHIBTHIE -

KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to Compliance with Labour
BRI IR 1S B4.2 eliminate such practices when Regulations (Page 47)
discovered. BESTED(F478)
B IE R IT N - PIEREX
BTTE) ©
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management B [ BS : { fE §8 & 12
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental Rigorous quality control
— MR R and social risks of the supply chain.  — Supplier management
EEMEREN [RELEERARE (Page 35)
% BiEnE —HEmEE

(%35H)
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Aspects,

General Disclosures Related chapters

and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER

BRERER it RERE Ft 7E

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Rigorous quality control

BRSE 4B IE 1R BS.1

region.

BB NHERHEE -

KPIB5.2
RS IR 517 B5.2

Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

W REERAED - FEH
TEREMMHEEREE - AR

BRABOINMITRESRTA

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility B 1 B6 : & f & 1T
General Disclosure Information on:
— B R (@ the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to

products and services provided

and methods of redress.

B BAFTHR (2 on AN AR A% 2 B £
SHEALLEEIA

e B
R A -
@ BER: K
(b) HEEERBROHER

— Supplier management
(Page 35)

BiEmE — HEmEE
($£358)

Rigorous quality control
— Supplier management
(Page 35)

B mE — e
($358)

Beautiful craftsmanship
(Page 33)
EBEOMERE
(¥$338)
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Aspects,
General Disclosures Related chapters
and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER
BRERER it RERE Mt =E
KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or There was no case of product
RS AE IR 1R B6.1 shipped subject to recalls for safety recall for safety and health
and health reasons. reasons. The Group recalled
BEENEEXERAHEY AL around 13,000 goods of same
P HREFERMARKKNE DL batch due to quality reason in
2017 in accordance with our
internal procedures.
20174 RHRIF W EAR
FEHEEFRIERFENE®D
fEEBE : BEBEE—F
BEBETHERERNE
EEHREE - 413,000 8
HEm o
KPI B6.2 Number of product and service Our commitment to The Group considers the
FASRAE IR 1S B6.2 related complaints received and how customers — Listening to our complaint rate (the ratio of
they are dealt with. customers (Page 38) pieces of sold products
BEEBRERMRGHIEFERE HLEZAER —REER  assocated to complaints
AR EE A - BE(5$38H) made by customers and total

number of products sold for
the same period) a better
indicator to number of
complaints received. The
complaint rate in 2017 was
0.0089%.

LR R BRI E]
(BB FTSEm 4 E
H[R] HAE mm RETIHE &K
ZEEE)BLIRFEE RE
BIERBERIER - 2017 F
R 4R 5 2R % 0.0089%
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Aspects,
General Disclosures Related chapters
and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER
BRERER it RERE Mt =E
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to Respecting intellectual
RS AE IR 1R B6.3 observing and protecting intellectual property rights (Page 39)
property rights. BEMBERE(FE)
i it B A T N ARPB NG E A
BB o
KPIB6.4 Description of quality assurance Rigorous quality control
B IE IR 1R B6.4 process and recall procedures. — Material testing (Page 37)
B 2R TEEREMBRIE  Our commitment to
[F o customers — Listening to our
customers (Page 38)
BEmE — iR
(¥$378)
REERAG —EERE
F(%$38H)
KPI'B6.5 Description of consumer data Our commitment to

RS AR IR 1R B6.S protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and
monitored.

it E B & B RHRE RALRE R -
A RABBITRERTE

Aspect B7: Anticorruption B B7 : R &5

General Disclosure Information on:

—RE IR ER (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BREMIEHR BR - BFERL
EEH

@ HE: &k

b) HREERRROINER

customers — Protecting
customers’ private information
(Page 39)

LEENAHE —REER
FLEZ (8839 8)

Operate ethically (Page 53)
BR2E R (E538)
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Aspects,

General Disclosures Related chapters

and KPlIs Descriptions in this report Remarks
BE - —REER

BRERER it RERE Mt =E

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Operate ethically (Page 53)
BRI IR B7.1 regarding corrupt practices brought ~ BE2 & (5553 H)

KPIB7.2
FABAEIRIE 1R B7 2

against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHMBHELEES
REYEBENETHARMED
A REFAAER -

Description of preventive measures

Operate ethically (Page 53)

and whistle-blowing procedures, how BEZ % (£ 53H)

they are implemented and
monitored.

R B E e MR AR T - LA R
HEARITRERTA -

Aspect B8: Community Investment B B8 : 4t [& % &

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI BS.1
FASARANIE 1R B8]

KPI B8.2
FABAEIRIE 1R BS2

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
THREEMTHEMNTE - BIR
HEBZBGERMIEN &8
R

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.,
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEREE (HE - RRE
HSBIFER #E- Yt 8

)

Resources contributed (e.g.,, money or Beautiful actions we take

time) to the focus area.

EEIRBMBMAER(NEER KBTS TELEZE

BEfE)

Beautiful actions we take
(Page 52)
EETETEREZE
(F528H)

Beautiful actions we take

(Page 52)
ERITE TR 2
(%528H)

In 2017, our employees
devoted 312 hours in total in
volunteering.
2017FA - ZHRFEIS
& TEBEREUR312

/NB o

(Page 52)

(8528)
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable and a
majority of the recommended best practices under the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Review Period”),
save for the following deviation:

The code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board of
directors should attend the annual general meeting. Madam Ngok
Ming Chu, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 25 May 2017 due to other
engagement. In view of her absence, Madam Ngok had arranged for
other directors and management, who are well-versed in the
Company’s business and affairs, to attend the meeting and
communicate with shareholders of the Company.

AAREEFENEEBRNARRINERE
AEBREER c ARRIRERIFNEEE AR
REYRHER BENRAXL  AIFENE
BERIRREBENRITHELER -

ARARANEBBMEXZABERAB([H#R
P 1) &5 B AR A (T BT R AL &%+ r AR
MCEERERTAD TeXERTADIERED
XERBHRMTA -

EEZRR ARAREBE_ZT—tF+_-A
=t—RIFE(EESHRD AN —BEETHAE
1 3E8 5T A BB A 57 RIS - A R KERn &
XBERTARZBNRESR - AT REET R
FIBILERID -

STRAMEX EEI12IGETR EFE T FRHERK
RBFAG EFSIRFREARLLIASEE
B MAEEEARAR_-_ZE—LFHEA
“TRERTZERBEARE - AW ARNE
ZERBEHE - WE LB EMAT AR R ER
LRERZEERERBHFEARE  YEARQF
Z IR o



GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
BRRE

Board of Directors
(4 Executive Directors
and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

B
(MBMTEER
=RBUIFNTESE)

Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
(1 Executive Director Audit Committee (1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent (3 Independent and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors) Non-Executive Directors) Non-Executive Directors)

FMEES _ ERZEE® REZES
(—RITEER (ZRBILIENTESR) (—RMTEER
SRBNIFPITES) SRENIFRITES)

Audit Centre
(Assistant Director - Internal Audit)

3t o

(SR ERES
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Directors

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the
Board's responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board setting out
the approach to maintaining a Board with a diversity of directors. The
Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting its sustainable development. All Board
appointments will continue to be based on meritocracy with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, namely Madam
Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun; and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee
Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. The number of Independent Non-
Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board. The
biographical details of and relationships among the members of the
Board are disclosed under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 28 to 31 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as all the Executive Directors possess extensive
experience in management and the research and development,
design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional knowledge
and broad experience in finance, law and management respectively.
The Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the Board
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and provide
a system of checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company.

=

EFEERIEEFENXGERML UBHY
RAAAEERREE -

EXgCHETEFEXNBETILBRRINE M
F—EAXREZTTEMESTSMERIRNITE o &
RAAEEFEREZ TL 2 0 RERHE
ARERRNBRTIR EFEMALIHE
BURABESRRR YRIBEREESEKE
Zlbmda - BUE NERIR— RIIZ T
BAEE  BRETRMMER - Fik UL
HEES Bk FELR G TREER
BES RERBREANENRERAIREZSR
HEVBRIMIERTE

EECHAANBRTESERKZ T (E
&) BB+ (1THREE)  BE2EERE
BT R =2BIIFNTESIEELE =
BERERTREBRAK  BYIFRITES
MABEEEEASN=NZ UL -BEFE
REMBREFBUARFEEZHANBERERERATE
WEBEIBESRaREEE] BH—F
W= -

ExefE AREBATEERNEERKNK
AREMNIIE R - LEREEDEERB
LEER MZUBIFATESTDREY
B AEMEETEABERARNEERL
B AtEFeXEMNEARBASEEER
BREAMAEHFNLERERLEE ERN
EZRNFE - -EFE2RL EF2HFHR
BAERESSNBEIERETBRE - YaLieHt
— AT K T I AR AR S AR 2 R0 7

QL
m °



Article 108 (A) of the articles of association of the Company provides
that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at
the Company’s annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the Company is
liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the Company may
remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary resolution at a
general meeting as prescribed in Article 114,

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-
election at annual general meetings are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. New Directors
appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive
Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Executive Directors, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years.
Each Executive Director is entitled to a discretionary management
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to
all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company shall
not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated net profit of the Group
(after taxation and non-controlling interests and payment of such
bonuses) for that financial year of the Company. An Executive Director
shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors regarding the amount
of the management bonus payable to him/her.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for a
term of two years with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
key terms and conditions of his appointment.

Save for the directors’ fees, none of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding his
office as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

ARAREHERARE 1A IGRE  EFE
BRRBEFAKEL BER=0Z—FF FIEHEA
BAU = =E2 - BIASEOETDR=
DZ—HABRER HEREFAELE=
FwESTE R REIEZAEREEEE-
RIBARIE 10516 NRABNEZRBLUAINE
THERTHEZER - MARBIRARAIRIZE 114
BREVREBBRIRRAE LM EBRFE R
RRBERESE -

FEENZIRERRBFRG LBETEEN
REBGLAREZEZESERE  BHRKZES
MESSRIEZ HESEEAT HEEFZ
FZANESZSARBEARRZRMAET EK
RAFAS FERFEEE EEFEENET
B iRRZEeeRE EMARRIFE308 %309
6 P 38k 9 ZE BI SR8 AT TS - inE B IS
EMITEENERAR - RABARFA LETRL
F 33 EPTHIR B L 2R o

WITESEERURLKL  BBELL  HBER2E
ERBRTTERARBTIREHE - BE
FHREMF - SRR TESIRIBBER
FEAL R ARRHERHBFEE N T2
TEENEARBEISEBARBNZAAR]
M IRF R BAZER A AR (FIFR IR M SRR
PreiEas A ML FIEALIR) HI8% » MITESR TR
MERNEERESNNERCASENESS

RARRE -

BRBUFNTESTZERAME - EXRME

B SRS E X B R R S 5T

BREEESI X TRIBE L IFRTEEK
EEEFRTESMEBERNEGME -
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The Company annually assesses the independence of each
Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of appointment.
In January and February 2018, the Company received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmations, the Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of association
of the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each meeting after consultation with
all the Directors and the Company Secretary. Prior notice of each
regular Board meeting is given to all the Directors at least 14 days in
advance and the Directors are invited to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent to all
the Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed) prior to
meetings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide
sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to attend. For
special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the Directors
and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board meetings and
Board committee meetings are available for inspection by any Director,
auditor or any relevant eligible parties who can have access to such
minutes.
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The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings,

Board committee meetings and annual general meeting held during
2017 is set out in the following table:

T%%CEJX§$ RIZE-—EFRBTNESRS
Begga kR RAFKENHFE
.:Eﬁ: :

CEBEZR

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

SRHERYBIRY
Annual
Audit Nomination  Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
E= Exe ENZEE® ReZEg® FMZEEE RRBFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman) A% (LE) 9/9 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 0/1
Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer) ~ BVE% (1TB#2#) 9/9 N/ARE B 22 22 1/1
Cheng Chuen Chuen* gEe: ) N/ATER NATER NATER N/ATER
LuQun i 99 N/ATE R N/ARE R N/ATER 1
Independent Non-Executive BUFBTES
Directors
Lau SiuKi FRE 9/9 33 212 Y] 1
Lee Kwan Hung E3 ) 9/9 33 )y ) 1/1
leeT.S. FRE 9/9 33 22 2 11
Average Attendance Rate TR 100% 100% 100% 100% 83.3%

*

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen was appointed as an Executive Director of the

Company on 22 September 2017. Subsequent to his appointment, two
Board meetings were held during the year.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors

during the Review Period.

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to
indemnify its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not
limited to, any proceedings brought against them during the
performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service
agreements entered into with the Company.

*
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) (with certain modifications
but on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code (“Securities Dealing Code”) to regulate the securities dealings by
all the Directors and relevant employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and members
of the senior management who confirmed that they complied with the
Securities Dealing Code during the Review Period.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings and
updates on the Group's business, operations, internal controls and
corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were
provided to the Directors. They also attended courses and seminars
organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the
duties and responsibilities of a director during the Review Period. All
Directors have provided the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the CG Code.

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided with independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense in order to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.
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Functions of the Board

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and the day-to-
day management of the Group's businesses. The positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by
two different Executive Directors, namely Madam Ngok Ming Chu and
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza respectively. Their roles and duties are
segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities. Madam Ngok Ming
Chu, the Chairman, is to provide leadership for the Board and ensure
that the Board works effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, the Chief
Executive Officer, is answerable to the Board for the operations of the
Group. Madam Ngok is the mother of Ms. Cheng.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

the standing Board committees of the Company namely:
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution,
powers and duties are clearly defined by its terms of reference,
and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc Board
committees may also be established as required from time to
time by the Board;

the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day
management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable to
the Board; and

the senior management team of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Executive Directors.

The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure
that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of the
Group's businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the Group’s
performance, financial position and operating results, in order that the
Board is able to make an informed assessment of matters put before
the Board for approval. During the Review Period, each Executive
Director had frequent meetings with operational managers in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the Company to
react to changes or problems quickly and effectively.
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The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and
include:

any matters relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategy and direction;

any matters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk
management;

any changes in corporate structure such as the changes relating
to the Company's capital structure, including share buy-back or
issue of new securities;

major appointments such as appointments to the Board, after
taking into account the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer; recommendations to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditor after taking into
consideration the recommendations of the Audit Committee;
and the appointment or removal of the Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary;

any matters determined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies,
material contracts, major financing arrangements and major
investments; and

the corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

With respect to the corporate governance functions, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority
to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the Company’s
prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems are in
place.
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Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have been
formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and
responsibilities by the Board. All the Board committees follow the same
principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board receives the
minutes of each committee meeting on a regular basis, including their
decisions and recommendations.

At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
Prof. Lee T.S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board among
the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee consists
of not less than three members. The Board considers that each Audit
Committee member has broad commercial experience and together
form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and accounting fields and
that the composition and members of the Audit Committee comply
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Board,
after consultation with the chairman of the Audit Committee, provides
sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to enable it to discharge
its duties.

The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in
its terms of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit
Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the external
auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial
year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance to the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders, potential
shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders
relating to:

the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and
independence;

the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and
the performance of the external auditor; and

the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings
including one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is set
out on page 75 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i) review of the external auditor’'s independence and their report,
with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment of
the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its
2017 annual general meeting;

(iii)  review of continuing connected transactions;

(iv)  review of the interim report and results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(v)  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared by
the Finance and Accounts Department;

(vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor;

(vii) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(viii) review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

(ix) review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company's accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget; and

(x)  review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2017, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable to
Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the following
services provided during the Review Period:

Services Rendered

EZZ B EHRAR R Z IMNSZERED 2K
SR SEE AN B E AR HEA T IRBAR
AN E

Remuneration
Paid/Payable

FriR AR5 B/ EAHe
Audit services EZ IR HK$2,980,000
Non-audit services IEEZARTE HK$774,000
Total: FEE HK$3,754,000

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor is
reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the
auditor and the management of the Company during the Review
Period.

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising
one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely:

Prof. Lee T. S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals
who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. After
considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as to
ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the succession planning of
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Nomination
Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2017. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meeting is set out
on page 75 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Review Period:

() assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

(i)  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;

(i) review of the existing structure, size and composition of the
Board; and

(iv) recommendation to the Board on the appointment of an
Executive Director of the Company.

As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director)
abstained from assessing his own independence.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. Lee T.S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the
Board in establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the packages (which include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of
individual Executive Directors and senior management (i.e. the model
described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code was adopted) as
well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The Board,
after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.

AT RIEEZ BN DEMEMETH TIER

= -

() FHEBLIFRITESHB LD

(i) MEEEFAEFSROES

(i) WMAEEFHRE  RRLEK K

V) REEAATNRITEFELNEFEIRL
-

RAETRFNEEEARR  REZARKE
(FABILFNTEER) ERA LAWY
b0 sF(L -

RN B BSCR AT IR AN 2 R A8 3k K B 22 P A48 vt S i)
REZEENBERE -

BRl ¥MZEemmakEEN  BFE—%
WITESMN=2/IUFNTES  DhIR -

FHERE (TF)
BRERL
FRESRLE
FREHI

FHEEEN T EREARESTSIIVL—F
ERNY EBHENREF UHTESELSRK
EIABMEMNEE  RRAESLEZERHR
TEELEREBAENFNFE(BIEES
BAE  RARSEFMEESE (REEAT
AP ARSI B 2(0) (i) R PTI BI R ) - W3k
FRMTEENFHRNESSRIEZR -EFQ
FHEFMZESEFRIELHRE  WFHEZE
SIRETZER U TEITHES -



In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate the
Directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The Remuneration
Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2017. The record
of attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is set
out on page 75 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the salary proposal for 2017 of Executive Directors and
staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

(i) recommendation to the Board on the payment of bonuses to
the senior management staff in Mainland China;

(i)  recommendation to the Board on the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the final
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the interim results of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2017;

(iv) review of the remuneration package of the newly appointed
Executive Director of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review of the new service agreement between the Company and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

review of the new consultancy agreement between the
Company and the former Chairman of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

(vii) recommendation to the Board on the payment of director’s fees
to Independent Non-Executive Directors.

As a good corporate governance practice, Remuneration Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director) had not
involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

RIBEEEATATAMRXEBISF - 5RE
BEEKRERBE-_T—tF+-_A=t+—H1It
FREZFHREFBMOT

Number of
employees*

EEAH*

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

*

One of the employees resigned after the Review Period.

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. During the Review
Period, the Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 101 to
107 of this annual report.

The Company announces its interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant financial period
and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, disclosing all such information as would enable the
Company’s shareholders to assess the performance, financial position
and prospects of the Company.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group has established comprehensive policies and
procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the
Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. It carries out the financial,
operational, project management and information security control
reviews according to the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the Audit
Centre conducts other reviews and work as and when required. The
management, in coordination with the Audit Centre, assessed the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress. Findings and recommendations are
reported regularly to members of the Audit Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the Board had
conducted a review of its risk management and internal control
systems of the Group under code provision C.2.1 and considered them
effective and adequate without the occurrence of any significant
failure.

The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent
assurance to the Board and management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Director of Audit
Centre reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness and
efficiency.

The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget during the Review Period and considered that the Group had
adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications and
experience necessary for the effective performance of its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to providing
a mechanism for employees of the Group to raise concerns about the
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. Internal procedures are put in place whereby employees of
the Group can report possible risks and inside information identified in
daily operation to the Board. Furthermore, the Company has developed
its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to the Company’s
Directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure
and responding to enquiries.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. The primary
contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can contact, is Ms. Katie
Fung, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has engaged a professional public relations consultancy
company to organise various investor relations programs (including
regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts) aiming at
increasing the transparency of the Company, enhancing
communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their
understanding of and confidence in the Group’s businesses and
promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going
communications with its shareholders and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group's businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior
management.
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Shareholders’ Rights

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in writing
to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department at the principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Company's registered shareholders can contact
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the Company’s
investors can contact iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company's investor
relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information is
available on the Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director, the following documents must be validly sent
to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a
resolution at the general meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the
nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be appointed.
The period for lodgment of the notices of (i) and (ii) above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such meeting.
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To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a written notice of those
proposals with their detailed contact information to the Company
Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at general
meetings varies according to the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes to
its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the articles of
association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
articles of association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

R Ry
The directors present their report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017

4|||TT|

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 108 to 196.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share was paid on 25
October 2017. The directors recommend a final dividend of HK8.0 cents
per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on the register
of members on 31 May 2018. Details of dividends are set out in note 14
to the financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements is set out below.
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Year ended 31 December
BE+Z-A=1+t—HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—E—tF —T—RF IT—HF —mFE —ZE-=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FHT FHET FAT FAT FAT

REVENUE g 2,339,524 2,216,082 2,535,818 2,383,127 2,234,763

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AT A 675,459 158,447 298,588 268,557 273,663

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrEHiRmx (180,160) (60,045) (97,014) (80,464) (75,294)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEZER 495,299 98,402 201,574 188,093 198,369
Attributable to: AT AL FE(S -

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE DN 495,299 98,402 201,574 188,093 198,369
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Summary Financial Information (continued)
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MBENMYE @)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—B2—+tF T RF ET—HF —TNHF —T—=
HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHT FHET F#&T FHET FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEH®E 3,249,851 2,495,379 2,508,835 2,409,264 2,151,480
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE8E (882,741) (775,892) (718,012) (664,699) (523,234)
2,367,110 1,719,487 1,790,823 1,744,565 1,628,246

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$841,433,000, of which HKS$33,793,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year after the reporting period.
The amount of HK$841,433,000 includes the Company’s share
premium account and contributed surplus of HK$767,760,000 in
aggregate at 31 December 2017, which may be distributed provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Charitable Contributions
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$8,536,000 (2016: HK$7,274,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (appointed on 22 September 2017)
Ms. Lu Qun

Mr. Lau Siu Ki
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
Prof. Lee T.S.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Lu Qun will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting ("AGM").

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”), and as at the date of this report, still considers them to be
independent.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 28 to 31 of the annual
report.

4|||TT|

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, subject to the
applicable laws, every director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of his/her office. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of
the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, Mr. Cheng Chuen
Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of two years commencing on 25 March
2016, 1 December 2017, 22 September 2017 and 2 February 2017,
respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed
for a term of two years commencing on 25 November 2016.

Under the service agreement, after each complete year of service, the
remuneration payable to each of the executive directors may, subject
to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors, be increased by
not more than 10% and the executive directors are entitled to a
discretionary management bonus provided that the total amount of
bonuses payable to all the executive directors for that year shall not
exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Emolument Policy and Directors’ Remuneration
The Group's emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly. Subject
to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary
bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with regard to the
remuneration packages of the Group’s executive directors is to enable
the Group to retain and motivate executive directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include
basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company's board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

ESERTHRARNKRD R ARG

BENKRE
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Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued share
Name of director nature of interest shares held capital
HARATE BT
EENSE SR ERMEE R o8 E [ &N =l
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled 249,137,574 58.98
corporations (Note 1)
ARt SPEHA B (Krat1)
Beneficial owner 2,334,369 0.55
ExnBEEA
Interest of spouse 2,983,688 0.71
(Note 2)
[V (Kiaz2)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza Beneficial owner 26,990,478 6.39
BiEE 2+ EnEAA
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneficial owner 513,793 0.12
#E2 A ExnEAA
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner 1,024,057 0.24
R+ EnEAA
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner 768,000 0.18
RBELE ExnEEA
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner 532,000 0.13
ES Yt EnEAA
Prof. Lee T.S. Beneficial owner 604,000 0.14
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EZER{THABANRG R BREREH
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares R R XA
(continued)

Notes: Btat
1. These shares are held as to 247,848,510 shares by Harmonious World 1. 3% Z % 9 % 5l H Harmonious World Limited
Limited ("Harmonious World") and as to 1,289,064 shares by Fairmout ([ Harmonious World ] ) X Fairmout Investments Limited
Investments Limited (“Fairmout Investments”). Harmonious World is ([Fairmout Investments ]) 5 A H 247,848,510 i A%
owned as to 40.91% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu and as to 59.09% by 7 $.1,289,064 B& A% 17 ° Harmonious World 7 Bl
Mr. Cheng Man Tai. Fairmout Investments is owned as to 50% by AERRL T MBS EEHE H4091% K
Madam Ngok Ming Chu and as to 50% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai. Mr. 59.09% 4 % © Fairmout Investments 7 5l B3 & BA
Cheng Man Tai is the spouse of Madam Ngok Ming Chu. R+ BB IR S A R B H 50% K 50% HE & ©
BEFEEERERAKRZ T 2BE -
2. Madam Ngok Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the shares 2. 1RIEFE A REIEEHIEXVED - EIRKLZTHE
personally held by her spouse, Mr. Cheng Man Tai, pursuant to Part XV BEAERBEHELEMATENOREZE 2 &
of the SFO. %o
Long positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation: PIEE A E EEARE TR
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
hEEEE
BN A 27953 2 BITRA
EEnE HEEE AR ) EES ROEE ERME WEZHL
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious  Ultimate holding 40.09 shares of Beneficial 4091
World company US$1 each owner
ERKZ+ Sl YN 40.09 A &A% BEaEBA
ERERE
B

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors  Br FXIETEEN R _E—+F+_A=+—
and chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or short B » BIEAR QR EE RITBBH N ARG HHE
position in the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its  {E1{a] AR5 B A AR 10 S AB BB AR 10 HE B IR 15 3%
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to % & B & 1§01 55 352 6 B 78 A B e it M A &
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and ~ RAE + SKIRIFIZAESFRIZE@BANA R 7] KB
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. FREVtER SR A ©
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any of the directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2017, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company (other than the interests of the
directors of the Company as disclosed above) were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

EEREROIEZHER
ERESHRESANEBIARH +/\RNF
LN F N R R EREN B BB ER
NEIBD S EFMELD - WERETELSE
Mo RRTR] - HERA RS E B QR IR
B AR BEE R TRBEAEMLEA
BEE A ZSER -

FERRREMATARGRABBRKR
7R

A—E—+F+-A=Z+—H UTFTAL(EX
FI e s A RREERRRIN RAQEE %
TTRRAF A 5% KA EZBRR AR R BIRIEEFH
NEREEHIZE 336 G FEMNZ L MRa s -

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARRERBROEE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
HAQT S 8T
®A B RERME R4 8B RAENEDL
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Interest of controlled 249,137,574 58.98
corporations (Note 1)
B REE e INCIE £ (Htat1)
Beneficial owner 2,983,688 0.71
EREAA
Interest of spouse 2,334,369 0.55
(Note 2)
(IR (Htat2)
Harmonious World Beneficial owner 247,848,510 5867
(Note 3)
EmEAA (Htet3)
FIL Limited Investment manager 37,520,000 8.88
REKE
Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner 30,000,000 7.10
EmEAA
Fidelity Funds Beneficial owner 26,739,000 6.33

EmBaA



Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)
Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 247,848,510 shares by Harmonious World
and as to 1,289,064 shares by Fairmout Investments. The relationships
among Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Harmonious World
and Fairmout Investments are disclosed under the section “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above.

2. Mr. Cheng Man Tai is deemed to be interested in the shares personally
held by his spouse, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

3. The relationship between Harmonious World, Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the section “Directors’ and
chief executive's interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of
this report.

FEREFEMALTHRROREBRKR
?%%é%ﬁ
Bfat -

1. 2 % W% 19 5 Bl 1 Harmonious World K Fairmout
Investments#5 B H2478485100% M 10 &
1,289,064 B % {7 © BRI A - BRAYRZ I -
Harmonious World 2 Fairmout Investments 2 &
MEREFER EX[ESFRITHRET R KRMK
MBS AE I TET ©

2 IREEHREE OISV WERE R
BAREREEERKLHEARENEE
7 s -

3. Harmonious World ~ BF&iZ= 5 4 R R TR 22 &=
ZHENBEREER EX[EERITHRATER
& R AARER (D RS ROR B ] B ©

BREXHEEIN R-T—tF+-_A=1+—
B BEALT(BaFEN EX [EFRITRER
R AR MR KRR | — 8 AR
AEERINRARR RO HABBB DT HES
RIEEFH N ERDIE 336 R AL sk H =R

N
IR)E °

TELARERE
BIEAANGIFTESHARER  UERRESA
MeRAREAE ARBREBITRGHAESD
B 2B5NEHARALTHEE -
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Durin

g the year, the Group had the following continuing connected

transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 22 December 2014, the services agreement which was
entered into between the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the related companies in relation to the purchase of
furniture and services of decoration for counters and shops as
well as different types of moulds on 21 December 2011 had been
further renewed for another term of three years commencing on
1 January 2015 after the expiry of the second term. The related
companies are controlled by a close family member of a
substantial shareholder and two executive directors of the
Company. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 December 2014.

The said close family member was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 22 September 2017

On 22 December 2017, the services agreement has been further
renewed for another term of three years commencing on 1
January 2018. Further details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 December 2017.

The continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
services agreement would only be subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements and are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules.

A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement
with a related company in relation to the lease of industrial
premises in Changzhou for a term of one year commencing on
10 April 2016. The related company is controlled by an executive
director of the Company and the close family members of a
substantial shareholder and two executive directors of the
Company.

The tenancy agreement was expired on 9 April 2017

The continuing connected transaction under the tenancy
agreement constitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing
Rules and is exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

BFERERS
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ERXRGHFBERELTRAUE WAZENRTER
IR o
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse in
Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company. The
continuing connected transaction under the tenancy agreement
constitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

A substantial shareholder who is the spouse of an executive
director of the Company has been re-engaged as a consultant of
the Company for a term of one year with effect from 25 March
2017. The continuing connected transaction under the
consultancy agreement also constitutes a de minimis transaction
under the Listing Rules, and is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions of the Group
are set out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in (1) above and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)~ on normal commercial terms or better; and

according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not exceeded
the annual cap for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year under review.

HEREXS (
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company has also received a letter from Ernst & Young, the
Company'’s external auditor, to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued the
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in (1) above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions:

Mm

() bhave not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(i) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed in
previous announcement of the Company.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 is provided in the sections “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” set out on page 3,
pages 8 to 11, pages 13 to 23 and pages 32 to 69 respectively of this
annual report. For environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and a description
of relationships with key stakeholders, please refer to pages 32 to 69 of
this annual report.

Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ngok Ming Chu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T A% BT R

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 108 to 196, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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T S A% B R (RE)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address

FARETEH
FREFFHEERERMANERHE KoY
AHG A BHRRNEBARSERNTHE &
LEREERMBFBRBEAMBEHRRMLA
BRABETREN - HMTSHELEREMR
BEBENER B TISFEEMS - RAREX
BE MR MAEEATREZSENSTR

BPIERREIT T ARE [HHEPBFA AR5 A
BHRERAENEE] BOMENEE  BFE
ZEEEMEME - Ak - RANB BRI
%zl* LAFE%Tﬁ{FhTZW\ﬁﬁi‘%i&i‘%iﬁﬁa%ﬂ%
B © JFIEEZFF (BHEREENA T
$Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ¥ﬂ’9ﬁf?)ﬁ’] &R - RIRFIHBEHT R AR
BUBRRABROBABERLIZHER -

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed KM E s
Key audit matter the key audit matter EAREEE REREREETSE
Inventory provision FaRE
As at 31 December 2017, the We tested the ageing analysis of N—_E—+F+_-F RASZHE =2£EH
Group had net inventories of the Group's inventories. We =+—HB ' BE£EHN HTENFHIT - &K
HK$655,453,000, representing 61%  recalculated the inventory ,? T £ 5 655453,00078 fIiRIE BEEEMK
and 20% of current assets and total  provision under the Group's SAHEENRESHE FTEFFEFER

assets, respectively. The estimation
of the inventory provision requires
significant management
judgement, which includes the
recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and
the future usage of raw materials.

Related disclosures are included in
notes 3, 9 and 20 to the financial
statements.

policy and assessed the
assumptions being used in the
inventory provision calculation by
reviewing the basis, the rationale
and the consistency of the
inventory provision policy,
considering the historical and
current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.
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Key audit matters (continued)

BREEE )

How our audit addressed R E ST
Key audit matter the key audit matter BREEE EEERENSEE
Fair value estimation of BREWELNFENGE
investment properties
As at 31 December 2017, the We considered the objectivity, NZZE—+tF+=-A HKMPEEZEEESEEMR
Group had investment properties  independence and expertise of =+—HB - EXEH BEAONSEHEMD
of HK$367,954,000, representing the external valuers engaged by 1% & W) 2 5367954000 BEME - By MMNE
16% and 11% of the Group's net management, and assessed the BT DREER & EH UFEMEM
assets and total assets, respectively. property related data, including EEFEENEEER BEE NI

The estimation of the fair value of
investment properties requires
significant management
judgement. The management
engages external valuers to
support its determination of the
individual fair value of the
investment properties.

Related disclosures are included in
notes 3,9 and 17 to the financial
statements.

estimates used by the external
valuers. Such procedures
included comparing the rent and
term periods against the existing
lease agreements, performing
market research on key valuation
parameters including the
capitalisation rate and market
rent of similar properties and
performing a sensitivity analysis
on the fair value estimation. We
also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in
reviewing the external valuation
methodologies. We then
assessed the disclosures relating
to the assumptions used in
determining the fair value.
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Key audit matters (continued)

BREEE )

How our audit addressed BN ET oM
Key audit matter the key audit matter AEETEE REARETEE
Fair value estimation of Other WELZHELENWHMEE
Asset arising from a relocation ATEME
arrangement
As at 31 December 2017, the We evaluated the objectivity, RZZE—+F+ = A BACTFEEERE
Group had Other Asset (as defined  independence and expertise of =+—H > s5£B/0HE FEANINBEE
in note 19) of HK$431,807,000, the external valuers engaged by EE(EERKME19) A8 O EM - 5B
representing 18% and 13% of the  management, and assessed the 431,807,00078 75 + 2 Al AE MEFE M - WET
Group's net assets and total assets, Other Asset related data, BN EEEFEERE FEMEEMRBE
respectively. The estimation of the  including key inputs and BEMI18% KE13% H i ¥ BIFEINBEE
fair value of Other Asset at its initial ~ estimates used by the external BENIBERRAYE MERNEZEHA
recognition required significant valuers and verifying details of MEEEETEEELE SELGHET  UE
management judgement because  Other Asset with relevant NG - TVRRE S RE ZEHEAE =SS
it involved the use of valuation agreements. We involved our BEEEERTERDR (B EMEEFHE &

methodology and key
assumptions, including gross unit
rate per square meter. The
management engages external
valuers to support its
determination of the fair value of
the Other Asset.

Related disclosures are included in
notes 3 and 19 to the financial
statements.

internal valuation specialists to
assist us in reviewing the external
valuation methodologies and key
valuation parameters. We also
assessed the disclosures relating
to the relocation arrangement in
the consolidated financial
statements.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BT A RHNBEN
&) Efiﬂﬁ)ﬂﬁl\ﬁlﬂé
B RBEEMEENA
A -

BRI BE B S BT IS TR R
MizE3 K19 o

FHAFNEMES
SEMIE S
(ERNREET S

BERAEEFTY
FHRAEE
HY R BB R o

ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%? MBHRENE

HE cm
B

+ A
=k

=D

(REaESS

= Hm Hm i

ﬁzﬁﬁTﬁEZ%H{Ma

P FABHESR
ENVEIEAISE ST
BRI {E R (E A RO
BIERERME
28 - BAIIEHE
R MR AR
BLZHFRERR K

B HEiEER8RE

A 75 R S A

B NREEAME
BBEREFMTAH

=24 BMBHRRNEFT  RAINEE
BIEEMER  El@iET  EEEMESR
Eiﬁi B BHRRIRMERBIETHAT
FRIERFEBAEBREUTFEEAER

B EER - ERERMDATHIE  RRK

PIR B EMIE

#&IZIEK

SHRESEAERRL - RAFE
B fEhm s RVLEERRSE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Y LAz B R S (A)

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

T S A% B R (RE)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

T ST AZ T R (4E)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2018

%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁé%%ﬁ%%%mﬁ
E(4#)

BEMERN  RARFANZEGER T B
MR EE  BEEH  EARHERS B
FERFIE BT R B A BB 0 T AR
f -

BMHEAEFZRESRIEH  HARMEH
BRMBMENRBEERERENR - I E
ABAR AR NETERMABILMEN
PIEBEMEMBEIR  AREEROBRT -
FERERORL EBE 1 ©

felREFZ B BB ERT - WIIHEE WL
SHHAHPHEEMBRRNFTRAER
MEKRESREFH - RMESBE RS
MELFIR  BRIPERER T AT RRAKEE
LEETR - RAERRF RHERT - MREER
HERMBETBEXFTHENN B HRRE
BEENARNE  RIVRETEERSETE
BRZEIA

HARBI ZBEBENESHEEBAZR
B o

ZKE BB A
-]

)

RIRRFE 15
RIEAE 2218

—E-N\F=ZA=+=H



108 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED Z i 5Kk E R 2D & / ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &3k

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A5 A I A %

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=F

—tFF- A=+ HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
KaE FET FHET
REVENUE & 5 2,339,524 2,216,082
Cost of sales FHE R A (514,032) (471,531)
Gross profit EF 1,825,492 1,744,551
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement MBS 19 449,980
Other income and gains, net HA WA e - F 5 6 89,403 52,763
Selling and distribution expenses HEROHEBEY (1,420,233) (1,377,636)
Administrative expenses THREX (251,056) (245,694)
Other expenses Hhfx 7 (8,823) (7,274)
Finance costs Bl & pk AR 8 (9,304) (8,263)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT 9 675,459 158,447
Income tax expense FTiSfiF 12 (180,160) (60,045)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KATHEE AERS
ATTRIBUTABLETO FERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 495,299 98,402
EARNINGS PER SHARE RNTHEE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — B (L) 118.21 23.62
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (Bl 118.21 23.62




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

m/T\ ] %Eq&ﬁl%

Year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ-Z—+F+-A=1+—HALLFE

2017 2016
—E—tfF AN
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 495,299 98,402
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hip2mEKA(BIX)
(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) RE 1% BARI Al & 37 \*Ez}gﬁéﬁ’\]
to be reclassified to the income statement Emzmmk A (%)
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of WEIRINEBERTEE 2
foreign operations [E 5 =% 158,865 (117,655)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZBAB T ESNHEEERA
not to be reclassified to the income statement HiA(FAX) :
in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus R 6,636 -
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REEEMHHFEHENRZ
reserve (note 28) TEIEFIE (K2t 28) (1,659) =
4,977 =
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hih2mEKBA(BX) -
(EXPENSE), NET OF TAX MBRFIE 163,842 (117,655)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE RAREEAEGEE
INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR 2EBA (B HEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 659,141 (19,253)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e BN DL

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
KaE FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BENEE 16 1,162,378 1,062,213
Investment properties "EYZE 17 367,954 307,158
Prepaid land lease payments T T30 A EFRIE 18 40,564 33,996
Other Asset HEf&EE 19 431,807 —
Deferred tax assets FEEFR B E BE 28 92,797 84,810
Deposits and other receivables Y& N E b R U Fk T8 22 76,099 14,139
Total non-current assets EmEBEERE 2,171,599 1,502,316
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories VeSS 20 655,453 659,347
Trade receivables FEUNE SRR 21 112,205 85,220
Prepayments, deposits and other FERIFRIA ~ e REMEWR
receivables 1A 22 75,883 58,309
Cash and cash equivalents BeREASZEY 23 234,711 190,187
Total current assets MENEEEE 1,078,252 993,063
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables BE SRR 24 56,000 87,678
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TEIRITER 25 136,778 133,278
Tax payable FER R IE 21,297 20,536
Other payables and accruals A FE A FRIE K FE ST EIE 26 322,564 274,174
Total current liabilities mEaEaE 536,639 515,666
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETE 541,613 477,397
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,713,212 1,979,713
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITERK 25 189,278 221,555
Deferred liabilities FIEE F 27 189 1,889
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 28 156,635 36,782
Total non-current liabilities FRBRERE 346,102 260,226
Net assets BEFE 2,367,110 1,719,487
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners RRBEE ARG ER
of the Company
Share capital [N 29 4,224 4,166
Reserves E] 37 2,362,886 1,715,321
Total equity B 2,367,110 1,719,487

Ngok Ming Chu Cheng Pik Ho Liza
EHRER S
Director Director

BF EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

“/T\

St ST &

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=F

—tFF- A=+ HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RO RERAER
Reserves
1
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Share  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
Bt EEEf CERER ERRD BRE
B&  RER H4BRH W EEREE W HERE e REEN SRR 48R
Notes HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
it FEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  FEr TET TEr FEn
(note31) (hote31) (hote3])
(Hiit31) (Hit31) (Hii#31)
At 1 January 2017 W=%—t§-A-H 4,166 369,644 122,610 3,336 144,249 (82,045) (3,168) - 1,160,695 1715321 1,719,487
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - - 495299 495299 495299
Revaluation surplus LY - - - 6,636 - - - - - 6,636 6,636
Deferred tax debited to asset REESHRFENRZ
revaluation reserve EREHE 23 - - - (1,659) - - - - - (1,659)  (1,659)
Exchange differences related FERNEEREE L
toforeign operations ERER - - - - - 158,865 - - - 158865 158,865
Total comprehensive FREERAEE
income for the year - - - 4,977 - 158,865 - - 495,299 659,141 659,141
2016 final dividend declared ERRIA=E—E
and paid RER S 14 - - - - - - - - (17916)  (17916)  (17,916)
2017 interim dividend “EtERERE 14 - - - - - - - - (10528)  (10528)  (10,528)
Shares issued inlieu of cash dividend X & R & ik S FT3%17
2B 9 58 16868 - - - - - - 16868 16926
Transfer from retained profits BARBET - - - - 18,161 - - - (18,161) - -
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tF
+-A=t-H 4,224 386,512 122,610 8,313 162,410 76,820 (3,168) - 1,609,389 2,362,886 2,367,110
At 1 January 2016 W=Z—E-A-H 4166 369,644 122610 3336 124,849 35610 (3,168) 21923 1,105,853 1,786,657 1,790,823
Profitfor the year FEET - - - - - - - - 98402 98402 98402
Exchange differences related FERNEBREEL
toforeign operations ERER - - - - - (117659 - - - (117659 (117659)
Total comprehensive FRRERA/ (Zi)
income/(expense) for the year ek - - - - - (117,655) - - 98,402 (19.253) (19.253)
Share options lapsed BRIEL 30 - - - - - - - (27,923) 27923 - -
2015 final and special dividends ERRIA=E-1F
declared and paid RERERIRE 14 - - - - - - - - (41,666) (41,666) (41,666)
2016 interim dividend -z /\EEF BRE 14 - - - - - - - (0417) (0417 (10417)
Transfer from retained profits EEREET - - - - 19400 - - = (19:400) = =
At 31 December 2016 WZT—1E
+-A=t-H 4166 369,644 122610 3336 144,249 (82,045) (3,168) - 1160695 1715321 1,719,487
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Sra e inER

Year ended 31 December 2017 #EZ=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E2—tF AN
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
HiaE FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax [ T8 BT e A 675,459 158,447
Adjustments for: FHE
Finance costs & A AR 8 9,304 8,263
Bank interest income SRITR BULA 6 (2,256) (2,083)
Depreciation e 9 57,218 53,476
Amortisation of prepaid land A A ERIE 2
lease payments B 9 988 928
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement B LB 19 (449,980) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HE MEmE - BER
items of property, plant and RBIEE 2 BB
equipment, net (Yezs) - F8E 9 287 (278)
Provision/(write-back of provision) PREF SRS (BEEm)
for obsolete inventories, net R 9 (6,253) 37,366
Impairment of trade receivables FEW B 5 R FORIE 9 2,784 359
Changes in fair value of investment KEYENTEE
properties 6 (4,000) (13,000)
283,551 243,478
Decrease in inventories FERD 10,147 20,140
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEURE SR TR, (18 h0) (29,769) 4,907
Increase in prepayments, TEfRIE © 1R R E M EWGRIE
deposits and other receivables N (27,244) (3,761)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEEZ SERZIE I, CRA) (31,678) 19,472
Increase in other payables and accruals H i fE S 3008 K FE AT R IE I N 34,247 44,141
Decrease in deferred liabilities R A &R (1,700) (1,194)
Cash generated from operations LTRSS 237,554 327,183
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEBFEHR (813) (802)
Overseas taxes paid BEEINRIE (68,237) (124,780)
Net cash flows from operating activities I ISR AR 168,504 201,601
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

A =
WT\ fﬁj‘z ()ILE%% mE
Year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ-Z—+F+-A=1+—HALLFE

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
HiaE FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B2 F 8 2,256 2,083
Additions to prepaid land lease payments TR LR E FIE 18 (6,025) =
Purchases of items of property, BEME  WERKEEE
plant and equipment 16 (100,234) (210,720)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BERXEEES
property, plant and equipment Z 1S 5R18 130 318
Net cash flows used in investing activities KBRS IRES M S5 (103,873) (208,319)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFTBHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings ISR ITIE R 102,169 196,013
Repayment of bank borrowings BigRITER (130,946) (149,391)
Dividends paid EfTIEE 14 (11,518) (52,083)
Interest paid EATFE (9,304) (8,263)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEE) ISR R (49,599) (13,724)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBESEEYZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®hnCRd) FEE 15,032 (20,442)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRekReEEY
beginning of year 190,187 233,017
Effect of foreign exchange rate BE}oXE  FH
changes, net 29,492 (22,388)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZEAEERBEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 234,711 190,187
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEEYERZDW
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAER 23 234,711 101,298
Non-pledged time deposits with REARRIBHESVR=MEA
original maturity of less than three 2 EARTE TR
months when acquired 23 - 88,889

Cash and cash equivalents HENESZEEY 234,711 190,187
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P 5 o B At

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

1.

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006 under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located at 7th
Floor, Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during
the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"),
which is considered by the directors as the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HKS$'000) except where
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(@) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A Bs A R B AL (%)

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
included in Annual Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

2HEE®)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

2.2 Changesin Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
As explained below, the adoption of the above revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in
note 35 to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their
carrying amount. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group has no deductible temporary differences or assets
that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group's financial statements as
the Group did not have subsidiaries classified as a disposal
group held for sale as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.3 lIssued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(FRIC)Int 22

HK(FRIC)nt 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments'
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Leases?
Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28!

Insurance Contracts’
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures®

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a maodification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments
introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three
amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group will not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018. The adoption of HKFRS 9 is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on the
initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues
on identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a
more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment
to be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15
will not be material.
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2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are
more detailed than those under the current HKAS 18.The
presentation requirements represent a significant change from
current practice and will significantly increase the volume of
disclosures required in the Group's financial statements. Many of
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group
has assessed that the impact of some of these disclosure
requirements will not be significant. In particular, the Group
expects that the notes to the financial statements will be expanded
because of the disclosure of significant judgements made on
determining the transaction prices of those contracts that include
variable consideration, how the transaction prices have been
allocated to the performance obligations, and the assumptions
made to estimate the stand-alone selling price of each
performance obligation. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the
Group will disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with
customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. It will also disclose information about the
relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and
revenue information disclosed for each reportable segment.

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e, the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e, the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
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2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January
2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16
upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in
note 32(b) to the financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the
Group had future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$208,071,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed
to determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.

2.3

EHEMERNRERNE BT
HER (&)

HAENRMmMMLD - ABEABED BIHER
HEBENFERYXEEFEREEEN
WERS  ABEABTERE TEHE
EREHTEHEAE  flnaREE
PR ARETZEN RN —HEH
I EREEMIIBARRBEEMNKEE -
EBEA—MGEFTTEHESBENEE
BREEEAREENARE - FENK
WEEBF 16T AB A E S G ER
F17HRALAANSHEESR - B
ANBHEEFREE BT AERIZE 175748
RS BERBEMEREETSE I
BzrBEEHERMERE - B8
BHRELEUNFE 6FRESERBAREHEAA
ER BB ERE17REEZHIE
EoAMANREFAEZABPIIESE
BYEERAZER - AEBEHE-Z
—NFE—A—BREMNETETBEHREE
BIZE 1657 - A BB EFEE B ER
LEBFICHRRRNENTE  WIEE
EEREEFNARENATERER AR
15 BRI TR B 7 = R AR FOHE e © sBan
SRR 20 FTEE - R=ZF—+
F+_A=+—0 AEBERETAUTH
HEZEHES HE4)F 208,071,000 7T HY
RRFEREMNK - KRB BT EHRE
HAF165E%  EPETLRBAIKTE
BREFNEAEEEREEGE - A
M HBEETE—THTABETNE
AREENMHEEENEREE 81
BETRAEEEEEERENSHEE
HENEREEE M fTERER
EREERIENERBHB ZAIRE
HFTRRA -



NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of
a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes
in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of
property held at the date that it first applies the amendments
and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions
that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how
to determine the date of the transaction when applying HKAS
21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective
basis, either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period
in which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

24

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be
applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in the income statement as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.4

EEEHRRME ()

HEEC PR TREELBU(KBHEE
EERLAER) BRI M % LA BB 1D 55

EHE  MEEEMLEXEKNRaEk
EER  ErHEXB AN ESE

AZEBOIREE - % IER T HER
[ E*ETFPﬁHj’Eif&E’ﬁEﬁETE&
ReEEBUNRENEETIE -

AN AR T B E R
BAME - AT MEATHSRERS
£ ABEE TR 5T S AR AR
(B 18 403 2 (P 9 £ (B2 © A8
(B3 B YRR S AR
HRHRAESABEEEDHK (ERE

IMBERT) XABEMBETMIE
He TBREAEEMISEAAKREET

EAZTS - BEEXKRBENRFEET
BRERMS2EEREEXABEER

BURERENGETEANE -

o MAENAT EENBAN RIS
SREREEAREGAREEENE
£ REHEELE T RRARE
FRZEEENXEAENEMTSES
Bl PRE LMW ©

AEBRWNERNTIRBREABRED

BEAHEFTERFEENGETE N
EECHEBEBRERGABBLEER
PERTRAIBRE AR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 2 -

based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Level3 -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

()
(if)

(iif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment ~ 10% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:BERME (&)

(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Other asset is the right to receive the new properties under a
relocation arrangement, further details of which are given in
note 19 to the financial statements. Such asset, being the
consideration received upon disposal of the original properties
under the relocation arrangement, is initially recognised at its
fair value. Subsequent to the initial recognition, other asset is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or

sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24
(continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e,, the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
income statement.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

2.4

EEEHRRME ()

Eﬁ@%ﬁé\fﬁiuwiﬁ ReNMREE
F#@@%%”Efﬁ/i\&éﬁﬂf% A & 52

HEneEinE (ESREREET SR
E’]fﬁi REEZDRRKAREHR
(—RBARTZR=EH))  BERE
i%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ’]fﬁ“iﬁi‘i C WK A EE IR
CEEEFEHNRS

RREEEMBHIREK  RERAEF
BEVEERTHEASMRITER B8
N RPR B R HIE R M B IR S 1 E A
U2 EE °

HAWE ERIEECEREES (AIF
E-BERFREED AIEERTERS
FHENEE) TERELENEERAE
EYT'JJ/(?ZMKW?%EE%%%EUKZ*%B
c HEZEEECARBEHBIERTE
fﬁjﬁ% HEERATNETIAER
ﬂ: - fAREERRAARAEREEM
FREERIERE - TRIERE WA FE
REBERCHMEERAT MR - FTAH
B ENAREEBAE - FEKA
EREBEBABEZRMELNNER
HApRA -

EARBESHETREARAEERN
HEBEMAKAEARKERAET
Aff HeerSEfmerEEc8E  Ale
FERIRA -

HEMREZEEKR AR EEE
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁifﬂ@h 1£FﬁﬁZ?EXﬁaﬂSEE$E

THEAERZHE - BREIRAER
iﬁfﬁi‘bﬂz RIRFT A EER 2 BRE A o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—+&F+=A=+—H

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside the income statement is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the
prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC").
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(@) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“Equity-settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for Equity-settled Transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of these employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

2.4
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24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

2.4
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

As explained in note 28 to the financial statements, withholding
tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is provided, at the applicable
withholding tax rate, on the undistributed earnings of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries that would be distributed to their
respective holding companies outside Mainland China in the
foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly,
deferred tax on the Group's investment properties at fair value
is measured to reflect the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts of the investment properties through use.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Fair value estimation of investment properties (continued)

() recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
17 to the financial statements.

Properties applying for building ownership certificates
As of 31 December 2017, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain properties located in
Mainland China and was still in the progress of completing the
application of these certificates. After (i) having discussions with
the relevant government officials, (i) obtaining correspondence
from the relevant regulatory bodies; and (iii) taking advice from
the Group's legal counsel, the Group believes that it is highly
likely for the Group to obtain these certificates. Thus, no
impairment of the aforesaid properties was considered
necessary as of 31 December 2017. This is the best estimation
by the management based on current information. Further
details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, it
is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of
inventories and the associated provision required. When
calculating the inventory provision, management considers the
nature and condition of inventories, as well as applying
assumptions around anticipated marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Estimation of the fair value of the Other Asset (as defined
in note 19) at its initial recognition and impairment
assessment of the Other Asset at the end of the reporting
period

As disclosed in note 19, the carrying amount of the Other Asset
at 31 December 2017 is HK$431,807,000. The Other Asset, being
the consideration received upon disposal of the Original
Properties under the Relocation Arrangement, is initially
recognised at its fair value and subsequently carries at cost less
impairment. The fair value of the Other Asset, at its initial
recognition at HK$416,744,000 has been arrived at on the basis
of the valuation performed by independent professionally
qualified valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
assumptions, including gross unit rate per square meter. The
assumptions used in the valuation have involved significant
management judgement.

When there is objective evidence that the Other Asset may be
impaired, the Group estimated the recoverable amount of the
Other Asset. The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the Other Asset’s carrying amount and its
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount of the
Other Asset is less than the carrying amount, impairment loss
may arise.
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4.

Segment Information 4. pEER
The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture and REBZFELEDHBRLLINE - N
sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and sleepwear. B OARRER ZEEREE - AR
Since this is the only operating segment of the Group, no BAEBZHE—KEHE  WILEZT
further analysis thereof is presented. In determining the Group's E—F 2 0WN - REAEE 7@ E R
geographical information, the revenue information is based on H¢ W B TIRE T AR -
the locations of the customers, and the total non-current assets RIERBEECELERIBBEERIN) ER
information, other than deferred tax assets, is based on the 12 & E T AR -
locations of the assets.
Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
EI KB & Hitr st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt —TF ZB-tf T F Bt T F B+t T F
HK$000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FAET FET FET FEx FET
Revenue from external customers  SMFEPZUE 2,258,439 2,129,821 74,583 81,177 6,502 5084 2,339,524 2,216,082
Non-current assets ERPEE 1,987,426 1329130 91,376 88376 - - 2078802 1417506
Capital expenditure incurred FRERFEY
during the year 99,459 209470 775 1,250 - - 100,234 210720

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, as no
revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers is presented
under HKFRS 8.

Revenue
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts.
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6. OtherIncome and Gains, Net

6. HWARWKE  FHE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Other income Higl A
Subsidy income* FERL A * 41,139 39,477
Gross rental income Me W ALBEE 16,361 14,534
Contingent rents receivable in respective of K& EH B ARTE S
operating leases 725 784
Bank interest income |ITREHA 2,256 2,083
Royalty income ERREU A 159 278
Others Hip 2,180 4,460
62,820 61,616
Gains, net W FE
Foreign exchange differences, net EHEE - ¥5 22,583 (22,131)
Changes in fair value of investment REMERNTEZEE (Hat17)
properties (note 17) 4,000 13,000
Gain on disposal/write-off of items of & MEEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment, net HEEE 2 WEs - FE - 278
26,583 (8,853)
89,403 52,763
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this * I YT A ST S A TG (E (] R 2 16 (4 3t

income.

7. Other Expenses

HARFIR -

7. HFEX

2017 2016
—g—tF T AF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEx
Charitable donation EEBI 8,536 7,274
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEME  BEK
property, plant and equipment, net REEE 2 EE o FE 287 -
8,823 7274
8. Finance Costs 8. MEHAK
2017 2016
S
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FEL
Total interest on bank loans BIRTTE S 9,304 8,263
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9.

Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. FMKRBIANGER

AEE 2 BHADANENR,(GTA) :

(crediting):
2017 2016
—g-—tF TR
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA 514,032 471,531
Depreciation e 57,218 53,476
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEfSF -t A8 & FR0E 2 5 988 928
Minimum lease payments under BRANTRBREEHENZ
operating leases in respect of: RIEHESFIE
Land and buildings T REF 82,039 79,097
Contingent rents of retail outlets BERAGINTEY
in department stores KA 541,284 545,052
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERMFAZ (TBEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RITHREF M — FtaE10)
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries TENE® 649,172 618,736
Write-back of provision for RHRG 2 BERD
long service payments (1,700) (697)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIET B 51 64,817 63,381
712,289 681,920
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN & 2,980 2,980
Advertising and counter decoration expenses B REMERY 121,369 122,088
Provision/(write-back of provision) for REFERME (BErEm)
obsolete inventories, net HEE (6,253) 37,366
Impairment of trade receivables** W E 5 BRFURE ** 2,784 359
Research and development expenditure s M B3R 2,800 3,574
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEWE - BER&EEE
property, plant and equipment, net 2R/ () FE 287 (278)
Foreign exchange differences, net [EHER  FHE (22,583) 22,131
Gross and net rental income HeWRARE K FRE (17,086) (15318)
Changes in fair value of investment properties EMENTEES (4,000) (13,000)
Bank interest income RITFEMA (2,256) (2,083)

* The cost of inventories sold for the year included HKS 128,050,000 *
(2016: HKS175,828,000), relating to staff costs, depreciation of
manufacturing facilities, minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of land and buildings and the net
provision/(write-back of provision) for obsolete inventories, which
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed above
for each type of expenses.

** The impairment of trade receivables is included in “Administrative >
expenses”on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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10.

153

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERTHRAREGM
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BIEBEEHEXTZAER A ([H#
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Frl) s EmBA EmRE]) - B
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the N EMEBIZE 383(1)(), (b), () & (D 1E » LAKR
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), () NEl(BBEEENEER) RAIF23HE
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of YN
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
F#ET FET
Fees e 1,026 993
Other emoluments: Hme :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL REDREN 7,887 9,032
Bonuses* B4 * 5,752 4031
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRRAEFIFT B R 36 36
14,701 14,092
& Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * ARRBIHITEFBRERELA - M

which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the

Group.

TEAL & 87 Al 12 7K 2 B B 1R it 1) —
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

10. EERTHARTM 2

2017 —E—tF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses contributions remuneration
e
)= 4:1958 EBIREF
ue BN AL s EIHRR A
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKs'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE :
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERRZ LT - 3,873 2,397 18 6,288
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* BEEL L - 2,822 2,348 18 5,188
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen®* L - 128 92 - 220
Ms. Lu Qun BEEt - 1,064 915 - 1,979
- 7,887 5,752 36 13,675
Independent non-executive BUFNTEE
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki IBELE 342 - - - 342
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 3D 342 - - - 342
Prof. Lee T.S. FREHK 342 - - - 342
1,026 - - - 1,026
1,026 7,887 5,752 36 14,701
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

10. ESERTHARGTH 2

2016 —EB—XRE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e
EEE R BREF
e EMFI= TE4T SR BEH
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
FHET FHET FHET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ER%Z LT = 5,087 1647 18 6,752
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* BEEL L - 2,868 1621 18 4507
Ms. Lu Qun EEzt - 1077 763 - 1,840
- 9,032 4,031 36 13,099
Independent non-executive directors: ~ BUHEHITEE :
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ABERE 331 - - 331
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung YRS 331 = = = 33]
Prof. Lee T.S. FREME 331 - - - 33]
993 - - - 993
993 9,032 4,031 36 14,092

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company.

" Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 22 September 2017.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.
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11. Five Highest Paid Individuals 11. AEEEFAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRNRAAERSFAIBE=2EE (=%
(2016: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set —RNF =) EEMEEE RN EXE
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the BRI 108 - FRESGR A (=
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2016: two) T—RF  WB)IFEARRBEFHITHAR
highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief B EeHEE ZHMFBOT

executive of the Company are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FTRF
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAEREYHE 2,851 2,854
Bonuses TEAT 1,831 1,393
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAEFIFT S R 81 61
4,763 4,308

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FRBR A TR 2 FFE S RIEITHAE

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following HEaHFEEAZAOT

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EBEAE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EB—XE

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 77T - =
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 B JTZE 1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 7 75 - =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 7% 75 1 1




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BABS R M T ()
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12.

Income Tax 12. FREH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% ERMNBHIOIREBEFAGLAERTBEL

(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable

ZIERTUARN - R165%( ZF— /K% :
16.5%) < B R (E H B o ELfb i )7 R

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in FRA 2 BIBE D IR AN E B R & S

the regions in which the Group operates.

Z BRI KRG

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET F&x
Current — Hong Kong BVERRRIE — &%
Charge for the year FRHIE 2,986 811
Overprovision in prior years BIEEE 2 BBERE (20) (20)
Current — Mainland China BN HA 18 — Fp B KB
Charge for the year FERFHIE 63,276 72,844
Deferred (note 28) IRIE (K15t 28) 113,918 (13,590)
Total tax charge for the year FEABELZ N 180,160 60,045
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before AR B R ERE M B A a b=
tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company IR R R BRT AR Nt & 2 B E R

and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

X BERERRERFE ZHRAFH

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: HERAOE -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax R B8 BT A 675,459 158,447
Tax at the applicable rates BAMRFEZRIA 169,458 42,977

Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR B 1T BRI 2 BNEARS 18

previous periods (20) (20)
Income not subject to tax BERTZ WA (2,690) (495)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRIHNE 2 B 3,955 8499
Tax losses not recognised REERTHIEEE 7,605 7,725
Others Hith 1,852 1,359

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

BAEBEEEMREFTEZ
FRIES 180,160 60,045
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NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A Bs A R B AL (%)

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

13.

Related Party Transactions 13. EHEALRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in B%&%Eﬁ‘%i&%ﬁi\@*ﬁf Firatt 2

these financial statements, the Group had the following RSN REBRF NG FE

material transactions with related parties during the ANTETZEARSIT ¢

year:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Kt FHET FEIT
Continuing transactions = b
Purchases of furniture and mEE R R EMEA &
decoration services for counters I & 2 R S EAE RS
and shops as well as different AR ESHEAUEA
types of moulds from related
companies (i) 15,007 16,622
Rental expenses and utilities BN RIEE 2
expenses for a property e RAHBERT
charged by a related company (if) 91 272
Rental expenses for a warehouse ARREZUWHRREYZ
charged by a director of HefX
the Company (i) 167 167
Consultancy fee to a controlling MR BERR AR R
shareholder of the Company Ytz ER & (iv) 1,287 1,321

Notes: Kt -

() The purchases of furniture and decoration services for (i) AIANA 7] — 2 152 A% A% BR Ep B 2
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds SERMUITEREAKRL
from 2 BHE R &R EMORYI) BRAE (Duosiwei T+ MBS BT T — R BREAT
Metal & Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd) and = BHlcBEAR L BHERSE
% B RIAH 4 T2 F R A Al (Changzhou Duosiwei BHEG ORI BRAE REM
Furniture Decoration Construction Co, Ltd), related ZBHFERHTIEERAA
companies controlled by a close family member of Mr. BEEN REH 2R REE
Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the ARG LA 2 =245 AU 18 B & B ZX
Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik & FIB 7 R PRt 2 5
Ho Liza, two executive directors of the Company, were HE - ZRBEE2EEN
made according to the terms similar to those offered by E—+FNA—+_AERE
the Group's independent suppliers. The said close family RARNBIWTEE RN _Z
member, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, was appointed as an —+FE+ - A=+—BXR{IE
executive director of the Company on 22 September N R 2 R 3,716000 78 TT
2017. The balances owed to related companies as at 31 (= & — X F : 7,540,000/
December 2017 amounted to HK$3,716,000 (2016 JC ) JVEEE B RFEE—
HK$7,540,000) and were unsecured, interest-free and RESEREER - ZZ3 8D
repayable in accordance with normal trading terms. The RERGEERSIEE MR
amounts have been included in other payables and T8 R FEETZRIE o
accruals as at the end of the year.

(ii) The rental expenses and utilities expenses charged by & (ii) BARREITESHE L+
INZ H 75 B R A BR A &) (Changzhou Embry MR RIRRR A% R BB SR ST A
Development Limited), a related company, which was HERNEITE EERRZ M
controlled by Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, an executive B0 7+ 7 B Tl 2 B8
director of the Company, and close family members of BARBIMNERFTERBRA
Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the AUE 2 & KA H &R
Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik REEE I MAET - ER
Ho Liza, two executive directors of the Company, were HEWMEN_ZE—RFERA
determined with reference to the then prevailing market =+ — B IEE - ANEE R
conditions. The Group entered into a new tenancy BN BRI A E S 0 &
agreement with the related company effective from 10 EH-ZE—NFUAt+HEL
April 2016 subsequent to the termination of the previous W ZMEMZFER-_ZT—+
tenancy agreement on 31 May 2015. The tenancy FPg /A BFIE -

agreement was expired on 9 April 2017.
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13.

Related Party Transactions (continued)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iif) The rental expenses were charged by Madam Ngok
Ming Chu, an executive director of the Company, and
determined with reference to the then prevailing
market conditions.

(iv) Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, has been serving as a consultant of the
Company since 25 March 2014. He has been engaged
for the fourth term of one year effective from 25 March
2017. The terms of consultancy fee were based on
consultancy agreements entered into between the
Group and Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

The above transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and their details are disclosed in the report
of the directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above

13. BEBREALTRZ &)

(%)

Htet - (&)

(iif)

(iv)

MERXTARRBERITES
ERARL T BRI L ELRZ

riN/NCIE L S e e =]
T NE=ZA-_t+HABE
EAARER - =F—+
FEZA-tHAEZENERE
BH—F - BRBENIERER
BN B K AN 742 B A% R ER
BRI EZENHHRETE ©

RIBEETRAF AT A ER
SBRBFEEER S BHEFE
EREZTSHRENRE -

EEZRA/ LR HRNAEEH

transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of B RIRR LT o
business of the Group.
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Short term employee benefits EEE B2 A 19,966 19,510
Post-employment benefits BB 240 270
Total compensation paid to SNTFFEEBEAEZ
key management personnel 4R 5 T 20,206 19,780

Further details of directors’ and chief executive's
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial
statements.

BEERITRARTHOFBIHN
B RS ERRMIRE10

159



160 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED Z#] 5= RAER 2 7 / ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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14. Dividends

14. RRE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
HK$’000 HKS000
FET TFET
Dividends paid during the year FREMNRE
Final in respect of the BE-_Z—XR"&+-_A=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2016 IEBA R A R R EARR B
— HK4.3 cents per ordinary share* — BRE @R 43~
(2016: Final and special in respective of the (ZB—REFE  HE2_T—AF
financial year ended 31 December 2015 +=—A=+—BILHMERFERSE
— HK9.0 cents and HK1.0 cent, respectively, KRB — 9 Bl AR E B
per ordinary share) 9.0 711l K& 1.0 8L 17,916 41,666
Interim — HK2.5 cents” (2016: HEAR S — AT @A 2.5 8l
HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—7F  257840) 10,528 10417
28,444 52,083
Proposed final dividend BIRARERE
Final — HK8.0 cents per ordinary share RERE — REREER
(2016: Final — HK4.3 cents OB (ZZF—"F : KEIIRE
per ordinary share) — REREBEAR43E) 33,793 17916

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not
reflect the final dividend payable.

*

On 25 May 2017, the Company's shareholders approved at the
annual general meeting a final dividend of HK4.3 cents per
share payable in cash with a scrip dividend alternative (the
2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “2016 Final Dividend”). During the year
ended 31 December 2017, 4,461,797 new shares were issued
by the Company at the average closing price of HK$3.058 per
share, credited as fully paid, to shareholders of the Company
who had elected to receive scrip shares in lieu of cash under
the 2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme to settle HKS$ 13,645,000 of
the 2016 Final Dividend. The remainder of the 2016 Final
Dividend of HK$4,271,000 was satisfied by cash. Further details
of the 2016 Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 13 June 2017.

On 23 August 2017, the Company’s board of directors declared
an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share payable in cash
with a scrip dividend alternative (the “2017 Interim Scrip
Dividend Scheme”) for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (the
2017 Interim Dividend"). During the year ended 31 December
2017, 1,293,841 new shares were issued by the Company at
the average closing price of HK$2.536 per share, credited as
fully paid, to shareholders of the Company who had elected to
receive scrip shares in lieu of cash under the 2017 Interim Scrip
Dividend Scheme to settle HK$3,281,000 of the 2017 Interim
Dividend. The remainder of the 2017 Interim Dividend of
HK$7,247,000 was satisfied by cash. Further details of the 2017
Interim Scrip Dividend Scheme are set out in the Company'’s
circular dated 21 September 2017.

F AR AR R ARG A R EBRRRL IE
JEIREEF KRG it - ZEMEHK
WA RBRER REIIE

RoEB—+ERA-THA - AAFH
BEABRREFAE LBRBHE_T
—NE+ZA=+—BILEEREf
HY R HARR B &I 4378 1l - AT iR 2 A PR
RE([ZE—REUBRKREEE) (T=
T RNEREBRE]) - BE-T—+tF
+_A=T—RALFE ARFIERF
BT B IS L 305878 T 21T 4461,797
A& ABRZI AR FFTAR (D AR RIZ —
T RNFUARR EFELERUEUAK S
BN RER SR  WENZZT—X
R ERAR 81364500078 7T © —F — 7%
FERHANR B 8R%E 4,271,000 8 T 1B BIR
SRS o BT — NFURNREE
RE— S EEIN AR R A =T
—tFARA+=BMEEK -

R-ZE—+ENA=+=H A T@E
EeEHmEBEE—_T—tFA=1AHL
7~E B EAER & S S MR HARR B =A% 25
B ARENRRE (22 —tFH
BLARRBATE D) (== —tF Rk
B #HE_T—+F+_-_A=1+—8H
IEFE - ARRIBZRFHWRHERER
253678 703171293841 LA BRSI Ak 2
RS T AR RIR — T — G HIA
R B AT ELE R U EUAR BRI R EIR
SRR - MENZZ—+FhEHRE
328100087C « —E—tFHHR S
BH72470008 tEEBESE S - BH
ZE—tFHRHNRREEEIRNE—
HBEHINAARBHA-—E—+FH
A-+—HHEK -
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15. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ownersof 15. ZAATHEEAELEREF
the Company
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: ERERBF TR TETBAE
2017 2016
—®—tF —TAF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Earnings 2F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, ARt ERIRERER] 2
used in the basic earnings per share KN BEE AR F
calculation 495,299 98,402
Number of shares
RGH&E
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
Shares [ 8vil
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ 5t&E AR &l &M EARZ F
of the Company in issue, used in the FRERA 2 F B 81T
basic earnings per share calculation T3 A N S £ 419,016,814 416,661,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FAREREF GBL) 118.21 2362
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in HE_Z—R"FE_F—tF+=
issue during the years ended 31 December 2017 and A=+—H1tFE - Zf—"éllﬁ%@
2016. TEHECESRE 2 LR -

161



162 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ZRFIF5#Z R G R2A T / ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

15. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ownersof 15. ZAATEEAEEESRER (&)

the Company (continued)

As further disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements,

during the year, the Group recognised a gain on the
Relocation Arrangement of HK$449,980,000 (2016: Nil)
and the respective income tax expense of

HKS$ 112,495,000 (2016: Nil). Management is of the view
that the gain is non-recurring and, in order to enable an
investor to better understand the Group's result, it is
meaningful to present a reconciliation of adjusted basic
earnings per share based on profits attributable to
owners of the Company excluding the gain on the
Relocation Arrangement and the respective income tax
expense.

The calculation of adjusted basic earnings per share is
based on:

AN TS IRERMIFE 10T E - NF
AN AEBERABREZHE K=
4499800008 TL(ZFE—/NF : )
N A8 8 AT 15 4 A S 112,495,000 7T
(ZE2—RF:8) BEERBZ
W BIELEEWE » BFEIRESR
BT T IR R AR E A LR - iR
FREABRERZBFIEHBRRESR
Pl KRBTSR A AR QT
A AR FIEL A -

SRAE B AR TR T RS
5

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to owners of RRAEIHEB AR
the Company 495,299 98,402
Adjustments for: T
Gain on the Relocation Arrangement WBZHE (449,980) -
Income tax expense on the Relocation  #R:B L HEFT BRI XX
Arrangement 112,495 -
Adjusted earnings KRBT
Profit attributable to owners of the MR %8 2 B e AR RS
Company excluding the gain on the HRASXHARRHEE A
Relocation Arrangement and the i fapingl
respective income tax expense 157,814 98,402
Adjusted basic earnings per share IR B L HE W s M ARRE P S
excluding the gain on the Relocation TS IR =R E AN
Arrangement and the respective 2R GBI
income tax expense (HK cents) 37.66 23.62
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% BERRZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  inprogress Total
Bl B

BELH i UES HER EHAE
it b £ - E R hE ERIE it
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEn FEr FEn FEn FEr FEn FEn

31 December 2017 “E-tE+CR=1-A

Cost: A
At1 January 2017 RZE—+E-F—H 848,635 3,690 103,250 222,848 15,065 191,313 1,384,801
Additions AR - - 238 26,151 603 73,242 100,234
Disposals/write-off HE /i (14,280) - (8,237) (15,982) (1,689) - (40,188)
Transfers E - - - 5,010 - (5,010) -
Transfertoinvestment properties  BEZREME (i)

(note) (32,930) - - - - - (32,930)
Exchange realignment LS 67,382 - 8,431 17,849 909 18,601 113,172
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+E+-A=1-H 868,807 3,690 103,682 255,876 14,888 278,146 1,525,089

Accumnulated depreciation: 2:E:
At 1 January 2017 R=F—t%£-A-H 106,867 3,690 56,982 144,721 10,322 - 322,588
Provided during the year EnifE 18,008 - 7,502 30,004 1,704 - 57,218
Disposals/write-off HE /i (12,689) - (7,954) (15,500) (1,655) - (37,798)
Transfer to investment properties  EEZREME (32)

(note) (4.217) - - - - - (4.217)
Exchange realignment LS 8,118 - 4812 11,300 690 - 24,920
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&+-A=1-H 116,087 3,690 61,342 170,531 11,061 - 362,711

Net book value: FEFE:

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-H 152,720 - 42,340 85,345 3,821 278,146 1,162,378
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

16. ¥ - - WMEKRE#)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
[and and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
buidings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
- %8
BELH BENF FER RHFAZE
REF B Ba B{ A& rRTE @t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEn Fiér AL T Fiér FEL Fir
31 December 2016 “E-AETZA=T-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 R-F-7E-A-H 906,124 3690 106,558 206,827 16,949 38969 1279117
Additions NE 1% - 2530 38193 1492 168309 210,720
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (6) (9716) 2572 - (12,294
Transfers b 817 - 1508 1928 - (4293) -
Exchange relignment AR (58502) - (7.340) (14384) (804) M1 (92.74))
At 31 December 2016 R-E—E+-A=1-H 848,635 3690 103,250 22848 15,065 191313 1,384,801
Accumulated depreciation: ZiE:
At1 January 2016 R=E-~E-F—H 94752 3690 53427 137952 11831 - 301,652
Provided during the year EREE 18,759 - 7563 25512 1642 - 53476
Disposals/write-off HE /R - - 6) (9691) (2557) - (12254)
Exchange realignment EiAE (6,644) - (4002) (9,046) (594) - (20.286)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"ET-A=t-H 106,867 3690 56,982 144727 10322 - 322588
Net book value: BHFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~F+-A=1-H 741,768 - 46,068 78121 4743 191313 1,062,213

At 31 December 2017, the Group was still in the progress of

obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of

approximately HK$171,267,000 (2016: HK$161,835,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no major

barrier for the Group to obtain these building ownership

certificates. Subsequent to year end, in January 2018, the Group
has obtained the building ownership certificates for certain

buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of
approximately HK$151,473,000.

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group rented
out one of its occupied properties to an independent third
party for rental income. At the date of change in use, this
property became investment property. Upon the transfer from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties, this
property was revalued at HK$35,349,000 with a revaluation
surplus of HK$6,636,000 credited to the asset revaluation

reserve.

R-ZBE—+F+-_A=+—H A&EH
T 3% 32 L7 7R AR B0 K o R O S B ) 3
MWEEFMBEEEZFE ZEWENK
ERE47171,267,0008 70 ( Z B — /N4 -
161,83500087L) e KRR EERE * &
SERRSZEMENEEMBEEY
BEAER NREPERE —F
—N\F—f AEEERESHEARES
THENEEMBREE  REFEAR
151,473,000 87T °

Mt BE_FT—tF+-A=+—HILHF
B AEERBIE=FHBEEET
P AR € A o RS R A SR
TEH ZEMEKRBELEME - B
ME BMELIBEEREREDE
B 3Z 5 ) 3 & & {5 & 35,349,0007%8
JC 0 M E G A 526,6360008 LT AL
EEHEE -
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17.

Investment Properties

REW=

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS000

FHET FEIT

Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—HBZEmE 307,158 311,121
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NEEES (Hfate ko) 4,000 13,000

Transfer from owner-occupied properties R T(EAYE
(note 16) (Kizt16) 35,349

Exchange realignment [ 5 R 21,447 (16,963)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—HBZzEAE 367,954 307,158

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor,
Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong and certain floors of the building located
at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai City, the
PRC, and are held under medium term leases.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2017 based on
valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be

responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.

Selection criteria of an external valuer include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The management
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 32(a) to the financial statements.

AEEZREYMED LR BB FRE
AR 20057 E R0 2Hl6 18 K
B E/Bm5H R R K085 ZAES
THEE AKEZREMETIREGH
GEROES YN

AEEZREMES LR B L LTE
RERBYIEXSERMGEMTEHER
TERARESM -

BF AEEZBIIEMAEMEEER
KB ZYMEETINEGE - HNBIEEERD
MEUEERBEMISME  BE B
MEREGARKEXRSE - BEEEESF
EAﬁﬁaiﬁiHﬂF‘ﬁLﬁﬁTﬁﬁiéﬂﬁﬁEﬂﬁ%ﬂ‘
ARERR M GEERETH W °

FFEFEAZEETELEEE) - E/\féd‘
MEZATFEER  FENEZES
E’{:tﬁﬁ ?/Ej/\EEl fj} °

Tﬁﬁ%%uf&%fﬁffﬁ?% 77 HEF
BRI B IwKRMEE 3206
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17.

Investment Properties (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value

17.

BEYE &)

RZE—+tF+_A=+—8B~k=Z2
—NF+-_A=+—8 ' AEEBEMNUEK
TA R ABUEGBAT 2 IREYME LA

measurements were categorised under Level 3. TEBEEMAEEBEAENDERE=4E
T o
Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within NEBEEZERE="LANBZAEE
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: 1 .%' = HEE
Hong Mainland
Kong China
BB lEibNES
HKS000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 R-E—RNE—A—BZEREE 65,000 246,121
Changes in fair value recognised in U R AR Z
the income statement NEEEE 3,000 10,000
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% = (16,963)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 and RZE—RE+-A=+—HK
1 January 2017 —tF—-A—HZKRHE 68,000 239,158
Changes in fair value recognised in EAH&¥2€WEE?’
the income statement NEBEEE 4,000 -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EREEE(RAME
(note 16) (Ktat16) - 35,349
Exchange realignment [ 5 R - 21,447
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H
ZERHEE 72,000 295,954

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

FR - F-HEF_HrAREEHBRA
FEEFE TEEAF=FHEF=
REL (ZT—RF : |) o
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17.

Investment Properties (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

17. REWE (&)

UTRRENEHEERGERERE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: T ABIBEZHE
Significant Range of unobservable
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs inputs
L/ES Vil fREL % BEATAEERAYE TAIB WA RIBEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$2,700- HK$2,600-
— Commercial properties method per square feet HK$2,800 HKS$2,700
— Level 3 (note i)

B TS EE BIrHRESBNERE 2,70038 7T - 2,600 7T —
—ERYME (Btati) 2,800 7T 2,700 7T
— =5

Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4%-5% 4%-5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note ii)

— Level 3

LlETpN WAEBE R E BEENMEE (faEii) 4%-5% 4%-5%
—ERYE
—HB=H

Notes: Kt -

The higher the gross unit rate per square feet, the higher the BYARAEMEESS  ATFEY
fair value. = e
i, The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair i BFEANMEEYR - AFERE -

value.



168 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ZRFIF5#Z R B2 F / ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BABS R M T ()

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

18. FEfMNL#BEERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAET
Cost: DNE
At 1 January w—HA—H 40,013 42,871
Additions = 6,025 -
Disposals e (1,680) -
Exchange realignment PE i A% 3,531 (2,858)
At 31 December Rt-—A=+—8H 47,889 40,013
Amortisation: B
At 1 January ®R—A—H 5,140 4,569
Recognised during the year FANER 988 928
Disposals He (252) -
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 2& 460 (357)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—8H 6,336 5,140
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+—B=+—HZEREE 41,553 34,873
Current portion included in prepayments, STATEFRIE © 2o R EAER
deposits and other receivables (note 22) RIB 2 BVERER D (KYat 22) (989) (877)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 1D 40,564 33,996
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19.

Other Asset

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City's
urban development plan issued by Shenzhen City Luohu
District Town Re-development Bureau (R & 4 & 15, T &
/), on 23 October 2017, Embry (China) Garments Ltd.
("Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a relocation compensation agreement and a
supplemental relocation compensation agreement (collectively
known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited (G312
CIREWIEEBRR2AF]), acompany established in the PRC
and an independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in
order to implement a renewal plan by demolishing and
rebuilding in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
details of the Relocation Compensation Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2017.
According to the Relocation Compensation Agreement, Embry
SZ shall surrender its land use right and its properties situated
in the Buxin Industrial Area (the “Original Properties”). The
Developer, in return, agreed to (i) compensate Embry SZ new
properties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (R EE MBI NE RELER %)
on a piece of industrial purposed land with an area similar to
that of the Original Properties, to be developed and built by the
Developer (the “New Properties”; (i) compensate Embry SZ the
cost of land use right of the Original Properties, rental cost for
Embry SZ to lease properties during the move out period and
other costs related to the Relocation Arrangement (‘Cash
Compensation”), which are repayable from the Developer
within 5 years; and (iii) sell extra properties at a new building to
be constructed in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC
(“New Building”) to Embry SZ, whereby the price and area of
such properties at the New Building shall be subject to further
negotiation between Embry SZ and the Developer (collectively
known as the “Relocation Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties during
the year and signed the properties transfer confirmation (F/Z
B MR E) with the Developer on 30 November 2017.

19.

HiEE
BREFRNTEBRE T EFBBEMANR
N mBEERENRE R=F—+
F+A-+=8 THF(HR)RESE
RAF([ZFE R RAFHEEH
BAR) BFIImECHKERIREBRA
A (—ERAFABK AR RBYE =]
BRERE((ZERE])) FTURBHEREL
wARBEERZ (KB REHER
#FD o LBEBRFBEFRYIHOTERIF
BREERNEHREZAE - MEBHED
FHBENAQARBAHEA T —+E+
BZ+HB®HQMH - 1BIEREEEW
0 ZRFFINERHEEMRAA LT E
ERME(TEDEDERR T ER
o BHRESILEE () HE I FI
RBURYERER T XA Fih
REERRBENIAEEWENQE
MEEEETMECHYE]D  ()FHE
RIS FINE D E L HFEBRERAN - &
FIFFY AN BB EMENHER
AREBHRBERENEMKAN([BEMH
&) ELEARAENLBEREE
X (i) M2 F/ 5 RIS B ERINA LT
¥RFEF(HFEF])NBEINGDE - B
I FIEFZREMEZERLEEA
FeAFT RYIEEEEE—SEEES
AIEE ([HEBZLHE]) -

ZFRFTRINERFRNBRERYE - AN
—E—tF+-A=tHEBRREER

EREXERE -

[N=)
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19.

20.

Other Asset (continued) 19. HiEE#®)
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the BAANRESEHEE —EEBEARITE
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiry, the A 2BLEE AEEEHARERD
Group does not expect any obstacles to receive the New WERFT M RIR e ETE HIRIME
Properties and the Cash Compensation from the Developer. -Hz2—_FT—+F+_A=+—81t
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group FE AEBRILERAYE  HEER
derecognised the property, plant and equipment and prepaid B R FENEE M FZEREE 5 B 1,973,000
lease payments with carrying amounts of HK$ 1,973,000 and 78 70 [ 1,428,000/ 7T © BB B EH
HK$ 1,428,000, respectively. According to the terms of the ZNEEBSHEARAZGE  EREELR
Relocation Compensation Agreement and the properties TAERAR (B HEESBIRGER) T
transfer confirmation, the Group recognised the fair value of the BEMEERS  AEEERNEFT Y
right to receive the New Properties (the "Other Asset”) of mEMNITEDLCEE DR FE
HK$416,744,000, based on the valuation report issued by 416,744,000 7T - N 3R & il 8 50,780,000
Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally BT R AR BB B 52 14,143,00078 7T © A
qualified valuers, as an “Other Asset” and the Cash It - B B 1R B & BE A UL 25 449,980,000 78
Compensation of HK$50,780,000 net off with respective 7T K A8 8 B 15 3 7 32.112,495,000 7% 7T 7Y
relocation expenses of HK$14,143,000. Accordingly, a gain in BE_ZT—tF+T-_A=1T—HLEFE
relation to the Relocation Arrangement of HK$449,980,000 and REWERAER o MEDUAR S KA
the respective income tax expense of HK$112,495,000 were By A T &= K )\%UJ%? BT K
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the B - HwBEE (BB BRBLHELER
year ended 31 December 2017. The valuation is dependent on CF% ERBWEMRE) PP IRE AT ER
certain significant inputs that involve judgements, including R BB ABBEAR -
gross unit rate per square meter. The Other Asset, being the
consideration received upon disposal of the Original Properties
under the Relocation Arrangement, is initially recognised at its
fair value and subsequently carries at cost less impairment.
At 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of Other Asset and RZE—+&F+-_A=+—8 HmE
receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the EXREERBLZHENIIRS/MERKGIE
Relocation Arrangement are approximately HK$431,807,000 B ® E o 5 #9431,807,000%8 7T &
and HK$47,921,000 (note 22), respectively. 47,921,000 % 7T (F5E22) ©
Inventories 20. 78
2017 2016
—E2—tF ZE—RF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 91,953 60,309
Work in progress EES 51,812 39,633
Finished goods SUAK 511,688 559,405
655,453 659,347
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21.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period of

one month, extending up to three months for major customers.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables by the sales department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

FEW & Z AR X
AEBTFENEERVARETFSETE
B REERPLEBALENR - E
ER-—RA—EA TBEFPZEEH
AAEE={EA - NEE 2 HEBEE
*H&ZWH&ZMIE OREE B R - 8
HigEmm e REEE TR - EX L
NPt AR E 2 RWE SRS R %
TTEZBEPEHARPABRSZ  MAE
EEBESET 2R - AEBEY EpE
BYEZEFRESRFEEAERRAE
S B INR A - UE SRR A5+

B o
15N

$EIEA#&¢HEF'EJ,D# B2 W E 50
FREBRZAR 2 REDITOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET F#ET

Within 90 days 90HMA 106,096 79,516
91 to 180 days 91£180H 6,109 5,704
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 3,259 977
Over 360 days 360 HEA E 1,559 1,057
117,023 87,254

Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE (4,818) (2,034)
112,205 85,220

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$4,818,000 (2016:
HK$2,034,000) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H A&EH
EARETETURENERE SRR A
4818,00078 7L ( —F — 734 : 2,034,000/

7t) o {ERBE Y E 5 iRk IR 5
NENFF AR BHR AU E R0 E

WRR K o
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21. Trade Receivables (continued) 21. BWESZRR#E)
Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are FEWE R REREZ BT -
as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 2,034 1,675
Impairment losses recognised (note 9) B R (T 9) 2,784 359
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—8H 4,818 2,034
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not RIERRREZ EWE 5 BRRERE DT
considered to be impaired is as follows: NN
2017 2016
S =
HKS$’000 HKS000
FHETT FAET
Neither past due nor impaired REERINABE 106,096 79,516
1 to 3 months past due a1 EAE3[EA 6,109 5,704
112,205 85,220
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired REBPIARBEERE SERRTIEKR
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom SNV EENCBR ZREFERA -

there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to EaBERBRECEKREZERERT RS
a number of independent customers that have a good track BERAEBBFRIFEERECBUER
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors FEB -BENELR AR EEER
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for WERNBEERNES  BEBRAERDES
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there BAZHNKE  AARESRABAR
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the ZEERELRERE -

balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22. A HE BREREMEKR
Receivables yi]
2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) YA+ 3R & RRIE (KL 18) 989 877
Deposit paid and related direct cost L B | L) B8 + 3t s FRAE 2 A5
for the land use right in Shandong e MEEEER 12,361 2,340
Deposits for acquisition of items of WEEI % S MR EEE
property, plant and equipment BfEe 23,663 11,799
Prepayments TAfT5RIE 29,969 16,059
Receivables in relation to Cash Compensation B ERBLHERIR S #HE
under the Relocation Arrangement (note 19)  FEURZRIE (Kfa£ 19) 47,921 -
Deposits and other receivables Re RH MR 37,079 41,373
151,982 72,448
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATBRNNIE - BE MEM
deposits and other receivables FE W RIE 2 BIER SR 19 (75,883) (58,309)
Non-current portion FEENEAER 7 76,099 14,139
None of the financial assets included in the above balances is LR EEMES R E -
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the FFALIESRNeREERBI KRB
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no R FEMGRIE o

recent history of default.

23. Cash and Cash Equivalents 23. RERASEEY

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—RF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances He NIRTTAE 234,711 101,298
Non-pledged time deposits with original REARREISHAE ALK =EA

maturity of less than three months Z AR TE BT X
when acquired - 88,389

Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESZEEY 234,711 190,187
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23.

24,

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB") amounted to
HK$184,922,000 (2016: HK$179,009,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally made
for varying periods of between approximately one day and
three months on average depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Trade Payables
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

23.

24,

HERBRSEEY &)
AEERREHEEEBUAARKAE
IR & RIBITHER A 184,922,000 7T (=
T — X4 1 179,009,000/ 7T) © AREEZ
THERALBAEMER  HREPE
KBz INEERIEH - AREEE - SE
NMAEERHATE AEBEEERER
RHEITINER ZEB 2 BRITHARE R
BAEHEMER -

RITFFRBESERITERNEREEZ
FEHEGAS BRHEMERREFH
SPH—BEZ@RIEF  BFAKE
ERZBASFELRME  LIREBE LS
EHIFERA R B o RITERF RN
HAYY 1B AR ER 2 (BB RAFIRTT -

PEAS B 5 AR K
AEERREPRELAZ RN ESR
FIREH R B2 BRI AT T

2017 2016

—E—tF —TRF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FAET

Within 90 days 90HA 48,881 80,240
91 to 180 days 912180 H 4,377 3,051
181 to 360 days 181 2360 H 765 2,018
Over 360 days 360 H A £ 1,977 2,369
56,000 87,678

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

ENEZERLTE - —RN30E0
HAS e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A Bs A R B AL (%)

31 December 2017 =Z—tF+=-A=+—H

25.

175

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. FTEHITER
2017 2016
ZE-tF ZEE
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRRIE BRI
(%) A THR (%) E)il= T
BERTAERE BB
+185EEABRIT RAERE+1752
RERE+200 BAERT
Current B Hong Kong Interbank RIEFE 4225
Bank loans RITEH Offered Rate (‘HIBOR) 2018 HIBOR +1.75 to 2017
— unsecured — @R fISSW0HBOR+200  —T—/\F 136778 HIBOR+2.25 “FLF 133,278
BBRIT
BERTAERE AERE+185%
+185 2 EABRIT BART
Non-current B RAEFE+195 2019-2021 FEFE+195 2018-2021
Bank loans RITER HBOR+185t0  —ZF-N%Z HBOR+185t0  —ZF—\EZ
— unsecured — B HIBOR +1.95 —E--f 189,278 HIBOR+1.95 “E--F 221,555
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: R THI BRI ER 2 RITE K
Within one year —&R 136,778 133,278
In the second year FF 81,278 57,278
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZFLF (DEEREFE) 108,000 164,277
326,056 354,833
Less: Amount repayable within one year B R—FREEL A
and classified as current portion Eﬂ,ﬁﬂa‘[ﬂ ot (136,778) (133,278)
Amount classified as non-current portion 5| BIEENERAER D M £ 58 189,278 221,555

The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bear interest at rates ranging from 1.85% to 2.00% above
the HIBOR per annum (2016: 1.75% to 2.25% above the HIBOR

per annum).

it ER7

/\/AL/(/%Eu‘I'TEITQ‘i;/%fETT
REFEFFEIMN SEZE200EE(=
T—RF: REBRITRAEREFNE
P75 EE 225 FEETE) o
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26.

27.

Other Payables and Accruals 26. HtEARIBERETTN
2017 2016
—®—tF T AF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FHT FAET
Other payables H b e~ 3008 110,605 107,367
Accruals TR 211,959 166,807
322,564 274174
The amounts of HK$3,716,000 (2016: HK$7,540,000) included in PiN-S lﬁé,ﬁ\ﬁtré R RIBFTB4E#Y 3,716,000
other payables of the Group were due to related companies as BIL(ZZE —/NF : 7,540,00078 ) AR
at 31 December 2017. These balances were unsecured, interest- —E—tF+-_A=t+—HEMBER

free and repayable in accordance with normal trading terms
(note 13(a)(i)).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

Deferred Liabilities

Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect
of long service payments which may become payable in the
future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to

A ZFH ° Mi%ﬁ%#’jﬂﬁﬁ EBE &
FR—MREBKREER HE13@)0) °
H AN FRIB AT R °

27. EEBEE

ELRERBEERSHHEEREHRE

WM & 2 a8 -

REARS € Al 6

ARBEERRBRIGIRZEENRAEELZ

employees in proportion to their periods of services with the FEEMMAEE X o
Group up to the end of the reporting period.

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,889 3,083
Write-back of provision for the year (note 9) FEZBERE (M) (1,700) (697)
Payments during the year FE 2R - (497)
At 31 December ®nt+=-—A=+—8H 189 1,889
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28. Deferred Tax 28. EERHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRNRLEHEABEREEZEFH N T
year are as follows:
Withholding
Temporary taxes on
difference undistributed  Temporary ~ Withholding
arisingfrom  Unrealised profitson difference taxes on Deferred
Revaluation  Relocation profit of PRC  of provisions interest subsidy
of properties  Arrangement  inventories subsidiaries  and accruals income income Others Total
il BER
BEZHEL AER FAMEN  EHFE FEKMA if13
NEER <ENEE  FEEA BN <EREE  ZEMB BEMA At )
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T T T T Tk T Tikr T T
At1 January 2016 RIE-—~%E
—A-H 1,785 = (39,568) 32828 (27,366) 363 (6,161) 101 (37,108)
Deferred tax charged/ ERERERNG/

(credited) to the income (Ee) ZEILRE

statementduring theyear  (#fi£12)

(note 12) 2,500 - (289) - (14767) 656 142 777 (13,590)
Payments during the year ERTA - - - - - 677) - - 677)
Exchange realignment & i A% (258) = 2799 (2189) 2606 ) 403 8 3347
At31December2016and R ZE—RE

1 January 2017 +ZA=1+-R

RZZ-t%
—A-H 4,027 - (39,667) 30,640 (39,527) 319 (5616) 1,796 (48,028)
Deferred tax debited to equity  ERAEERR 2

during the year ELHE 1,659 - - - - - - - 1,659
Deferred tax charged/ ERERERIR/

(credited) to the income (H%) ZETHA

statementduring theyear  (Hfz£12)

(note 12) - 115,809 5339 - (6,233) 659 140 (1,796) 113918
Paymentsduring theyear  ERZA - - - (2,907) - (662) - - (3,569)
Exchange realignment EH A% 400 4,186 (3,152) 2478 (3,612) 27 (469) - (142)
At31 December 2017 RZE—tf

+-A=t+-H 6,086 119,995 (37,480) 30,211 (49,372) 343 (5,945) - 63,838

177
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28.

Deferred Tax (continued)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

EIERIE ()
AT AREERERBTS 2IBETH
TR DT -

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the R E WA R R R
consolidated statement of financial position %RIEQF (92,797) (84,810)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RS B SR R R IR
consolidated statement of financial position MEAE 156,635 36,782
63,838 (48,028)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$265,973,000 (2016: HK$219,939,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Macau of HK$8,712,000 (2016: HK$14,083,000)
that will expire in three years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in the Company and
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In
estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made assessment based on the factors which included
dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital
required for the Group's operation in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate withholding tax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$46,479,000 (2016: HK$18,351,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEBREBELEZHREBEEBBY
2659730008 T( = T — KN F:
219,939,000 7T ) 7] £E PR HA (L I SE EE £ 1
BRRIZRRERBIGEN - REBEINE
R P E A B TEE 1887120008 T ( &
— 7N4F 1 14,083,000870) © B =F R
fEm - AR SEE B E A R R R ERF
mAl e BN ZEBBRABFERE
—BEBZARRIMKB AR BEHRE
ﬂ%$@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ7#@%ﬁﬁ%
B BMUENRZEEHERRELEHEE
?Eo

BIEFBERERBRE - R BRRERK
4Z%§¢¥ﬁ%l&§%*ﬁ2%g
ER10% 2 AT - BEEENR =
TNEFE—A—HEER Em%m_7
TLE+-_A=+—BEZEF - i+
B A P ER HNE 5 A T ) &%EJE
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29.

179

Share Capital 29. R
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Authorised: SETE -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 %
HKS$0.01 each BREE 00 AITHE R 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
422,416,638 (2016: 416,661,000) 422416638 i (ZZ— 754 ¢
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 416,661,000 i% ) F AR EI &
0.01 T E AR 4,224 4,166

The movements in authorised and issued share capital of the

ARTNEREEE REBTRAE

Company during the year were as follows: e
Number of Share
authorised Number of Issued premium
shares issued shares capital account Total
BRI
EERGEE i 4 R& R RER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TArx TArn TEr
Asat 1 January 2016, 31 December H=F—AE—F—R -
2016 and 1 January 2017 “E-Et-A
St-ARZE-t%
—A-H 1,000,000,000 416,661,000 4166 369,644 373810
Shares issued in lieu of cash REBSREFRETLZ
dividend (note 14) Win (st 14) - 5,755,638 58 16868 16926
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+-A=1+-H 1,000,000,000 422,416,638 4,224 386,512 390,736
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30.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including directors
but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii) any supplier or
customer of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity; (v)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any invested entity; (vi) any advisor (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any invested entity; (vii) any other
group or classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group; and (viii) any company wholly-owned by one or more
eligible participants as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 18 December 2006 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
a period of ten years to 17 December 2016.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

30.

Bt El
ARBR=BBAF+=A+/\BRS
BB (TRRAREETR)) - AYAS
BHOKINER BERNA BELEERHA
SRR SEE -

BREFINESER2EESRFENAR
A ENB ARSI E R NEME
B xBES (BEESE BT8EEMA
FEBMITER) : () AAF - EMBA R
FriE R e MEMFERITES (BEBL
FHITESR)  (WAEBEMKERT
TR E QAR HEFRER : (v)
ERAAREE K EMATIRE QI REH
7 ARREMAETEOEASRAR :
W AREBEAIKE AFIKTIRE R R
E{A AR R sk A& BTk B A7) sk ATk
BRAIFTBITEMESFNIZFEEA L VA
EBESTAAIRE QR ETMEREE
HEBBERNBE N EMARASEERM
(Vi) BAESK AT RERE S B EE - B
HEMmEBTHEMEAEENERERIER
EH BRI HEMIERI2EE © K (vii)
B EMiZE ()2 Vi) BN —RHERE
ERSEEZERENEMAT - B
EHEBR-_EERNF+ A+ N\BEE
R BRIEW IS IE - B RIE RS
wETEE T - "F+=-A+tH-

RITEREBRE S R AEB(EME
SRR T EIE R BB MR ITEMER
HEMETORDRY - TEHEBERA
NAEIE TR AR 30% - RITER TS
BRETEAERSBER L BRER
BT @RI+ — @A SR
BB AT RERED TGS
1% o FLiER 8 1t BR I M 45¢ 1 B AR e+ WA 7H
ERRABRREAS EHERFAEE -
RARNAES (THARSIEERES
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30.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company's
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of the offer of the share options or
the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
the share options; (i) the average closing prices of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

30.

BRESTE (@)

SN o HER+ @A BER - AARQ
AIEERRIBILIERNITE EHEMARE
E2HBEALRHEMBERE  BAX
72 A fa] B P 2 B 1T AR 15 0.1% 3k (1R 38
AREROAF L BN KHEER)
42 (B 18 38 5,000,000 78 7T BIZEERR R R
BRAREG EEHELARE - FAEE -

AR AR R EREE T FEARE B B 21
AAXNRBARE 1B LAZENES
BlRE - BRENTTEHRESET %
HEZEEREERF L AHETES
EBREEZZEIEARTFLEER
ErtEEm 2 Bl (ARES B%E) -

BRETEEHESETE  HETSER
TH&EEE  OAQFROREZR D
EREZATEHIMNEERERR
BWIETE : (VA2 ROREBEERER
HERIAAREEXEMIMETARE
FETERHFIIUWTE k(i) AN A\ R
KEE °
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30. Share Option Scheme (continued) 30. FEARAESTEI(2)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UT&EINN —_E—XRNE+_HA=+—H
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2016: BEARAE ST &I TN MR TR -
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
At  Granted Lapsed Exercised At price of
Name or 1January  during during during  31December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2016 theyear the year the year 2016 share options share options options
HK$
per share
REZB-AF REB-—XF BRE
SREREZRER —-B—-B FREL FREX #FAE® +=A=t-H BIRER L B BRETRA fiieE
SRET
Executive directors
HTES
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - (60,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
ERKZL “T—FRA+NR ZF-——£RA+/N\BE
“E-AERATEA*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1/460,000 = (1,460,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BEELT —T——FRATNB ZT--FREATNBZE
—E—"¥RLATtA*
Ms. Lu Qun 540,000 = (540,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BELL “2—FRA+NA Z—F-——FRA+/N\BE
ZE-AERATEA*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFRTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 = (100,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
ElE S 1 —F—%8A+N\B ZF-Z£RA1+/\BE
ZE-AERATEA*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 = (100,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
FHkEE —T——FRATN\B ZT-ZFRATNBZE
—E—R"ERLATtA*
Prof. Lee T.S. 100,000 = (100,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
FREHR “T—FRA+NA Z—F-——FRA+/N\BE
ZE-AERATEA*
Other employees
HitfE s
Inaggregate 11,120,000 = (11,120,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
@it —T——FRATN\B ZT--FRATNRZE
2 R"¥LATtA*
Others 35,000 = (35,000) = = 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
Hits —2—FRA+NAR Z—F-——ERAA+N\BE

T ERATLR*

13,515,000 - (13,515,000) - -
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30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year:

*

The share options were vested to the grantees in the following
manner:

= 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2012 with an
exercise period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2016;

- 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2013 with an
exercise period from 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2016; and

- the remaining 40% of such options were vested on 18
May 2014 with an exercise period from 18 May 2014 to 17
May 2016.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

RS El(2

FRBREE T RHARTTENBRES
ARPRE

* BRERAT I ARBTARA

- ZEBREN0NE R
FRAT+/\BRE - ’ﬁ%ﬁ
Z——_FRATN\BE_ZT—
FRAT+EH:

~
e

- ZEBREN0BE N T —
FRAT/\BRE  1TEHA
T—=FRAA+N\BE_-Z
FRA+ER: &

~
e

- ZEBBRENBRTI%ERF
—mERAT/N\BEB  17FEH
AB-ZE—NERA+NBE_-F

—NFRA+ER-

AT AR AR 818 T W RITE
H RS ASAE -

2016
—ERNF

Weighted
average Number
exercise of share
price options

HKS

per share

DIFEF 5
7B B

FZHGET
At 1 January m—A—H 5.24 13,515,000
Lapsed during the year FRRK 524 (13,515,000)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8 -

No share options were granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

All the outstanding options lapsed upon expiry on 17 May
2016. The respective share option reserve of HK$27,923,000
had been transferred to retained profits during the year ended
31 December 2016.

BHE_T-—RER-_T—tFt+_H
=t—HLFE" &E%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%k
1 -

FTBRMATTERBRER=-_Z—FAHA
++HEMBERI- @I_T_/\E
+ZA=+—81t EHABERERE
27,923,000 LB EERE R A o
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31.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation of certain members of the
Group which took place on 31 December 1992, over the
nominal value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited ("EGL")
in exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from the shares
issued by EGL for settlement of the amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii) the premium arising
from the acquisition of Embry (H.K) Limited (“Embry HK") from
the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and (iv) the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$S0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of their profits after
tax, if any, to the enterprise expansion and statutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject to the
approval of the board of directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior
to 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost, which
amounted to HKS3,168,000 (2016: HK$3,168,000) as at 31
December 2017.

31.

(G
R ROB(E 4 B S B & H0 R
------ BHE 2 IR BIRE NG A S
£ -

AEBEHABAKEIREEAR
—hWh-FE+=-A=+—HKEAREER
ETHRERR ZEXERRKRMOE
BB I BE UL 1E R 3R FT 1T Embry Group
Limited ([EGL]) A& 17 E’Jﬁ@%ﬁﬁ ) EGL
BLEE R AR E A A 151584 1,000
%Eﬁkﬂ?ﬂkf%immﬁ (iii) [A]
EERERBIBLHTE (BE) BRA A
([ZF75H B ) BT E & 4% & 5,000,000 78
7T RVBEBEEBEEAKENE RS
BAMBEEBHARAEREITUES
RIH R AHEERZB D A RIZEEAR
FIVE %5 2 #910,000,000 & & A& EE 0.01 75
TR E RIR A RHD

RETBEEANHEBRS - NRRRKTH
BRI AR B EE T A D LA
BREL RIS (A1) R AR AR B F 2>
IKAERECEBER OAEREES (G
RTANIK) - BRHSBRAFZENE
RANMEESHETAIEE -

Zli‘ila%%ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬂ“i& % ‘J%ﬂ-ﬁ
RBEEGEY AT —F—
HAETKWEBRMEENEE Eﬁéﬁi%?/:.\
EENEE REBENGEFEEAER=Z
T—F—A—HaKRENBRARELD
BESEEKNANNE R —tF
+ZA=+—H 4316800 T (=&
— 754 1 3,168,000/ 7T) °
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32. Operating Lease Arrangements 32, REHENZH

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due

AEERBLEHEOLEHER
BYE(ME17)  BHORNF—
ENFERETER

RS R ARE - BIEBEAEER
HEPFIMYz NAIMEL LM
#) REBRIATHBZ KKK

as follows: EEWKESBENT -
2017 2016
S A A
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Within one year —F A 17,843 12,693
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZENF(BIEEEME) 17,591 18314
35,434 31,007

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of
certain floor areas of the Group’s building located in
Shanghai are contingent based on sales of the shops
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the
respective agreements. As the future sales of these
shops could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above.

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses and office properties under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for terms mainly
ranging from one to ten years.

o ERAEEGR LB 2B
FZETEmEEMER 7D
rREENEE/EAES IR
15 8t o P B 2 R R MR 4%
B SHERETE - HNZF/E
HMZARBEERREERME
- MEBEAAEELRBEE
Ex-

AEERBELENLEERSE
TIEMH - 1B BERMKAEY
¥ HOTEUN-—E=+FFHE
TTRER ©
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32. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued) 32.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

KREP N ZTHE (&)

R EHEARE - REBEAEE
ZPAAHERERLY  ARER
UTEHMZzRREEENHEE R

BT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIL
Within one year —FR 114,446 107,155
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EFRF(REEEME) 89,289 58674
After five years hFEE 4,336 5416
208,071 171,245

In addition, the Group has entered into agreements
with department stores to enable the Group to set up
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals for
the use of their floor areas in department stores are

33.

based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the terms
and conditions as set out in the respective agreements.
As the future sales of these retail outlets could not be
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has
not been included above and only the minimum lease
commitments have been included in the above table.

Commitments

33.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:

o - AEEBEBFE QR
FOUBEAEEEAERARKNFE
REEY - FHAEARZER
EAEMEN ZEERHEE IR
EETHeEgABEeMEL 2
EeS&AET sAHEHIRESR
BTS2 GR RIEERTEE
BZHEHET ANZETE
B RREEE AR EREME
T HEBERRBE T ABEE
R o ERESIISEBEHIE o

Z3i
REENWEEE  AEEZARERT -

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIL
Contracted for commitments in respect BEWE BERZREZ
of the acquisition of property, B AT A IE
plant and equipment 262,425 122,738
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34.

35.

36.

Contingent Liabilities 3. RAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RIREHIR - B RR P W E IR B
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ZHARBENOT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property AREMERERS R AHERE
rental deposits and utility deposits R ATiRAt 2 RITHEIR 243 1,788

Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash  35. FERETRMEBRME
Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RETBHEENBEE L

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings
FFTERITER
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+tF—H—H 354,833
Changes from financing cash flows AR &R E ) (38,081)
Interest expense FBEMAX 9,304
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+HF+-_A=+—H 326,056
Financial Instruments by Category 36. RERSHZzEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHHAEESEeR T ANERE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
Loans and receivables BEXRREWRIE
2017 2016
S
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 112,205 85,220
Financial assets included in prepayments, JIRTBEMNFIE - ke Kk
deposits and other receivables Hit B F IR @ B E 53,031 5,029
Cash and cash equivalents RERESZEEY 234,711 190,187

399,947 280,436
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36.

37.

Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 36. RERSMZzE/M I A &)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHERATTEZEREE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERTTEK 326,056 354,833
Trade payables T E SR 56,000 87,678
Financial liabilities included in other B BEEREMENKIE K
payables and accruals JEEtFUAEZ @ RAE 196,175 184,618
578,231 627,129
Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. MBEAREEEERBE
Policies
The Group's principal financial instruments, comprise cash, rEEzFEcsRMTIABSERS B8

short term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group's exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2017, the profit before tax of the Group would
have been decreased/increased by approximately HKS$ 1,630,000
(2016: HKS1,774,000) if the interest rate has been increased/
decreased by 50 basis points with all other variables held
constant.

TFREFRBRITER  HESRMT AT
ZRANRASAKEREXZBFRE - A&
EEEMTReREERAEG  WEK
BIRANENEZRF - HEEEBE
REXBES -

ZK‘*I%E&IEZI%HAF‘%%JWH

CHNERBR - EERRERBE SR
% °§$%F‘)ﬁlﬁ%ma¢ A &1 E b
ZBER - BEAEMBRNT o

RenefXERAEMTARKRS
mERTSFEREmEBHRR - &
SERBAZATEMBEE REF XA
e REBAAIFRE(HT SR
% TREAEBEFEF R EMRIT
fBERER -

C AREBESEIRT AR HF R
&E AT - ARG B i E BRAR AT B AR
MEEFRRBMARR  TEERBER
BREEIEEE NEREHE -

WA= EFH TBS0ED: - MATAHEAM
AERIFITE - EA:%—JCEJr—H
=+—8  NEEB AR ER D, 1E
B #91,6300008 T( = & — ;N F:
1,774,000/ 7L ) °
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. MXEKBEEEEREE @)
Policies (continued)
The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions mainly REBFELUBTIARBETEETER
in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not use 5o AEBWENITES B T A RE
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility HEEKBREZIINEXRGREMESRE
associated with foreign currency transactions and other ENBBEMWHEZEE - AT - ARA
financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of EEZARABITRY - HAREHE
the business. However, as the Group’s net profit is reported in TS RIE WU E » R Z IR - NEBE K
Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain as a result of ERp 4 R E A AR B A RE - 3P LA A
the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The majority of the RED|R °
Group's operating assets are located in Mainland China and are
denominated in RMB.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRINTRBEREEER TR
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the MR EFREEETENBFIT » ANE
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of R EDREF S A RKBEXRAEHIESIE
the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of B o HRE(HREBEERBENR
monetary assets and liabilities). FEES) -
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
AR before tax
EREHES BADRF
(F#) #i, O )
% HKS'000
F#Ex
2017 —E2—+tF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB W THARERE 5 2,263
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THAREHE (5) (2,263)
2016 b AN
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB W THARERE 5 6,008
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA TR AREHE (5) (6,008)
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit term
and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
customers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained as
minimal.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor
liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient
cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy adequate cash position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$234,711,000 (2016:
HK$190,187,000) as at 31 December 2017.

37.
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37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

The Group financed its operations and investment activities by
internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

HERREEBEERKE &)
AEBFAANSEEZRESRMETE
P ABEEBRITETEREES -

RBEESHEGEER  AEERESHOKR
FRANFHEZEREBRHALT

Within

1year 1to5years Total
—ﬂEW —;.;EEfE ﬁg—l'
HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000
FAET FET FET

2017 —E—tF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER 146,087 196,594 342,681
Trade payables JENE SRR 56,000 - 56,000
Other payables and accruals Hth P BRI R FEET 3R 196,175 - 196,175
398,262 196,594 594,856

2016 AN
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s ESRITER 141,869 231,718 373,587
Trade payables FENE SRR 87,678 - 87,678
Other payables and accruals H {th B~ 2R08 & B AT SR 184,618 - 184,618
414,165 231,718 645,883

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
note 34 to the financial statements.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

BBE LW BEER > AEEINHEHEERRE
BoER  HE—PHFBERBERYH R
RMTFE34

AEEETBEEEAUBRAEEREIFE
LB RRFTEEERERELLEBLE
miEts (ER) BEA AR FRIEE &
K REBEE_TE—LtEFR-_ZT—XF
T+ A=+—RHLFE EBEAZHE
Z - BRSIEFILEEE -
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37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. MKEREEEERBE®)
Policies (continued)

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is RARFBREEB B R (BIRITE
total bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to HABFEBR AR A BB ARG IR ) B i
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the BR - NREHREEAGBLZRLT

reporting periods were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FTRF
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEERITIER 326,056 354,833
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZANA B A A E{HHE2S 2,367,110 1,719,487
Gearing ratio BEBBELE 13.8% 20.6%
q q am0 = BN
38. Statement of Financial Position of the 38. AQFMBEAMRRE
Company N
Information about the statement of financial position of the AR B RERRABEARRTLAT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
—=—+tF —E—RF
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR Z s 852,812 864,658
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments BT3B 44 46
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 68 153
Total current assets mBNEERE 112 199
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBAE
Other payables and accruals HAth fE A 3108 K JE R R 7,267 4,984
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEEE (7,155) (4,785)
Net assets BESE 845,657 859,873
EQUITY Em
Share capital N 4,224 4,166
Reserves (Note) & (M aE) 841,433 855,707

Total equity yaRERR 845,657 859,873
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38.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

38. ARTHMBERREK &)

Note: Wi
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RAR)BEBEENOT
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
R EER RS BRERE REER st
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
firzt FET FET FEL FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RoZ-~%-A-8 369,644 381,248 27923 125898 904713
Profit for the year and total FERNRER
comprehensive income fortheyear 2 UK A48 - - = 3077 3077
Share options lapsed Bl R 30 - - (27923) 27,923 -
2015 final and special dividends ERKEZNZZ-1F
declared and paid REBRERIRE 14 = = = (41,666) (41,666)
2016 interim dividend 2 RERHRE 14 = = = (10417) (10417)
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF
and 1 January 2017 +-RA=+—H
R=E—+5-A-H 369,644 381,248 - 104,815 855,707
Loss for the year and total FEBERER
comprehensive expense for theyear 2B X &% - - - (2,698) (2,698)
2016 final dividend BERREXNZE—E
declared and paid KRS 14 - - - (17,916) (17,916)
2017 interim dividend 2t ERERS 14 - - - (10,528) (10,528)
Shareissued in lieu of cash dividend ~ RERERBFTET 2R 29 16,868 - - - 16,868
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—+F
+-A=1+—H 386,512 381,248 - 73,673 841,433

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
then net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
to the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the then existing
10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium and
contributed surplus may be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options expire, be
forfeited or lapse.

RRARNEHREGTIARRIRIEEBEEAW
EBHBARMNEREEFEBEARAIL
BITE B BE IR AN E A KR E AT
YEBZ 79 10,000,000 i F X E(E 001 BT E
BFIRERRGD - RIEMAEBHEARE B HE
BRMEZAHKU DR TARRBRE @ HER
ZREEFRMIE BHI% - AR R MNBREE
BHEATFEBPIHES -

BRERFEREERDEMRITENBREDN
RFME - RS IR M 24 BLLAR D AT
RHW G HERP AL - SEHNER
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39.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

39. FEHBATER

ARBEEMBARMFELT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AT BRITRARE
£ A R AR i B R/ EMER AARELEEAEDLL TEEK
2017 2016
—B-t§ ZZF
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZHFEEMER AR B 1007 7T BEER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB153,030,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Embry CZ")** Mainland China (note) ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHRE (BM) REBR B RBIARE AR 1530300007T swimwear and sleepwear
(TZ=FFFEM]) = (Hiz) SERBERMRE -
AT - KK REEX
Embry SZ** PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
ZHITT R Mainland China 11,000,000 870 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
B R B ARE swimwear and sleepwear
SERBERMRE
MAE KR REER
Embry HK Hong Kong Ordinary HK$45,000 100 100 Trading of ladies' brassieres, panties,
ZHFEE &7 *Non-voting deferred swimwear and sleepwear
HK$4,500,000 BEELMHE -
LAk 45000 7T KR 2 R
HERZERTR
4,500,000/87T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
Limited (Embry (Macau) SRPY 100,000 9% swimwear and sleepwear
Prontto A Vestir, Limitada) EEZMERE - A -
25 (RP) B AR A A KK R EER
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD")** Mainland China 18,000,000 %7 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHFE (LR REBR AR HE AR swimwear and sleepwear
([=FF IR ]) = ERBERMNE -
AR KR REER
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and development
Limited ("Embry SH”)** Mainland China 238,000,000 7 7T and trading of ladies' brassieres,
ZHF (8 ARA HE B AR panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(& \%t/J)** FEt R BERERLM
ME - e kK REX
Embry Garments Limited BVI Usst 100 100 Investment holding
ERELES E REER
EGL BVI Uss472 100 100 Investment holding
ERELES NET REHER
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39.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

Place of

39. FEMBLATER (&)

ARBREEMBARNFENT : (&)

incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
MR ERTRARE
£ A R AR it B R}/ EREX AREEGESEOL TEEH
2017 2016
“BE-tf T RHF
Embry International Limited BVI Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRFERERAF KERAEE 1€7T REZR
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 Investment holding
HFRBARAF 55 2B REZR
Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
BB 08T NERE
Whistleblower Limited BVI Us$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
KERAHE 1€7T HEBR

X%

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other
than for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK
available for dividend exceeds HKS1,000,000,000,000), no rights to
vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus in
return of capital in a winding-up in respect of the first
HKS$500,000,000,000,000.

Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered as
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

Note:

The registered capital of Embry CZ amounted to
RMB176,200,000, of which RMB153,030,000 (2016:
RMB136,200,000) was paid up as at 31 December 2017. The
Group had the remaining unpaid capital contribution of
RMB23,170,000 (2016: Nil) (equivalent to approximately
HKS$27,916,000 (2016: Nil)) at 31 December 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

5 S 1 22 FR I T IR 0 A [ A R R Y R R
BU(RZFF B o] R B, a9 48 FI|iE8
48 1,000,000,000,000 7 7T 89 1F fa] 81 B F
BRI  RIEEAE LFRERRE
A& B 1 B B 500,000,000,000,000 % 7T 3R
EIE B B ER ©

** LHIFEM ~ ZFFE R - L F L
B R 2 #5542 1R 15 o BDE B i
WEINELZE »

BREGLSN » EHiFT A B AR B AR
GRS S

o+

Mt ZHRFEMNOEMELAAEARKE
1762000007 ' EHR R =T —tF
+ - A=+—BEXHARK
153,0300007( = F — R F : ARK
136,2000007T) c A=ZE—+tF+ =7
=t—HAEEREARLINTEREA
AR¥ 23,170,000 0 (ZZF—/~F : &)
(FEN 279160008 L ( —ZZ— 7~
F ) e

(o)}

ERFAINARBIMBARNEER RS
AEEXEREBRFEIBUAKEEER
EFEBEALBZWNBRR EFRR
i 75 L Ao PN /BB A B 2 R 1B —HF 51 - R
BLEMBRILE -
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40. Approval of the Financial Statements 40. HIEMKEHRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for iERER—_E—N\EF=ZA_-_+-_HE

issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2018. EEgERIRETE -
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